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Table 1
Maturities, Principal Amounts, Interest Rates
and Yields

Maturity Date Principal dA_EEéiing yield

(July 1) Maturing Coupon or Price
2004 160,000 2000%  1.250%
2005 165,000 2,000 o 1.500
2006 165,000 2.000 - 1.850
2007 170,000 2.500 2300
2008 175,000 3.000 - 2750
2009 180,000 3.500 7 3.100
2010 185,000 3.500 o 3.400
2011 190,000 3.600 3800
2012 200,000 4.000 3.800
2013 205,000 4.000 3.900
2014 215,000 4.000 4050
2015 225,000 4.250 B 4150
2016 230,000 4500 4300
2017 245,000 4500 4400
2018 255,000 4500 4500
2019 265,000 4500 4600
2021 565,000* 4700 4700
* Term Bond

This Official Statement does not constitute an offering of any security other than the Bonds
specifically offered hereby and such offering is made solely by means of this Official
Statement.

No dealer, broker, salesman or other person has been authorized by the District to give any in-
formation, or to make any representations other than those contained in this Official Statement
and, if given or made, such other information or representations must not be relied upon as
having been authorized. This Official Statement does not constitute an offer by any person to
seli or the solicitation by any person of an offer to buy and there shall be no sale of the Bonds
by any person in any jurisdiction in which it is unfawful for that person to make such offer. solic-
itation, or sale.

The information set forth herein has been obtained from sources that are believed to be reli-
able, but that information is not guaranteed as to accuracy or completeness. The information
and expressions of opinion herein are subject to change without notice, and neither the deliv-
ery of this Official Statement, nor any sale made hereunder shall, under any circumstances,
create any implication that there has been no change since the date hereof in the matters
which are material to the full and punctual payment of debt service on the Bonds.

In the reliance upon exemptions contained in such acts, the Bonds have not been registered
under the Securities Act of 1933, nor has the Indenture of Trust been qualified under the Trust
Indenture Act of 1939. The registration or qualification of the Bonds in accordance with applica-
ble provisions of securities laws of any states in which the Bonds have been registered or qual-
ified and the exemption from registration or qualification in other states cannot be regarded as
a recommendation. Neither those states nor any of their agencies have passed upon the merits
of the Bonds or the accuracy or completeness of this Official Statement.

Other than with respect to information concerning Financial Security Assurance Inc. ("Financial
Security”) contained under the caption "Bond Insurance” and Exhibit F specimen "Municipal
Bond Insurance Policy” herein, none of the information in this Official Statement has been sup-
plied or verified by Financial Security and Financial Security makes no representation or war-
ranty, express or implied, as to (i) the accuracy or completeness of such information: (fi) the
validity of the Bonds. or (iii) the tax exempt status of the interest on the Bonds.

INTRODUCTORY SUMMARY
STATEMENT

This summary statement is subject in all
respects to the more complete information
in this Official Statement, including the
Appendices hereto, and the offering of the
Bonds to potential investors is made only
by means of the entire Official Statement.
Definitions of certain terms used in this
Official Statement are provided in APPEN-
DIX B - SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVI-
SIONS OF THE INDENTURE .

Purpose

The purpose of this Official Statement,
which includes all pages herein and ap-
pendices hereto, is to provide certain infor-
mation concerning the South Coast Water
District (the "District”), the District's water
supply, treatment and distribution system,
and the District’'s wastewater coliection,
treatment and disposal system (collective-
ly, the “Enterprise”), financial information
concerning the District, and the economy
of the service area of the District, in con-
nection with the sale by the District of
$3,795,000 principal amount of the South
Coast Water District 2003 Enterprise
Revenue Refunding Bonds (the “Bonds”).

Authority for Issuance

The Bonds are being issued pursuant to
the provisions of Articles 10 and 11,
Chapter 3 of Part 1 of Division 2, Title 5 of
the California Government Code, com-
mencing with Section 53570 of said Code
(the “Bond Law”) and under an Indenture
of Trust dated as of April 1, 2003 (the
“Indenture”), between the District and BNY
Western Trust Company, Los Angeles,
California, as trustee (the “Trustee”).

The Refunding

The Coastal Districts Financing Authority
issued its Capital Facilities Revenue
Bonds, Issue of 1993, on behalf of the
District (the "1993 Bonds") to finance the
acquisition of a water entitlement from the
Metropolitan Water District of Southern
California and the improvement of certain
facilities to be used by the District for
water, water reclamation and sanitation
purposes. The Bonds are being issued for
the purpose of providing funds which, to-
gether with other available funds, are suffi-
cient to refund and defease the 1993
Bonds. The 1993 Bonds were dated June
1, 1993, and issued in the original princi-
pal amount of $4,380,000. Under the re-
funding plan, the 1993 Bonds will be paid
and redeemed in full on July 1, 2003. A
portion of the proceeds of the Bonds will
be used to fund a reserve for the Bonds



and to pay costs associated with the
Bonds’ issuance; no new facilities will be
built with the proceeds of the Bonds.

The District

The South Coast Water District was estab-
lished in 1932 and operates under provi-
sions of the County Water District Law,
Division 12, Section 30000 et.seq. of the
California Water Code. The Board of
Directors of the District consists of five
members elected at large for four-year
overlapping terms. The President of the
Board and other officers are selected by a
vote of the members of the Board. A
General Manager, who serves at the plea-
sure of the Board, is responsible for imple-
menting Board policy and administering
District operations.

The District has a 2002/03 assessed valu-
ation of $6,806,050,627. The ratio of direct
debt to assessed valuation is 0.10% and
the ratio of total direct and overlapping tax
and assessment debt to assessed valua-
tion is .53%. Based on an estimated popu-
lation of 40,000 in the District’s service
area, per capita direct debt is $177 per
capita total direct and overlapping tax and
assessment debt is $268 and per capita
assessed valuation is $170,151.

The District is located on the Orange
County coast and primarily serves the City
of Dana Point and portions of Laguna
Beach. The western boundary is the
Pacific Ocean and the eastern boundary
runs along the coastal ridge of Niguel Hills
with the City of Laguna Niguel.

Security

The Bonds are secured by a first pledge of
all of the Tax Revenues and all of the Net
Revenues from the Enterprise. In addition,
the Bonds are secured by a pledge of all
of the moneys in the Bond Service Fund
and the Reserve Fund, including all
amounts derived from the investment of
such moneys. See “SECURITY FOR THE
BONDS - Pledge of Tax Revenues and
Net Revenues”.

Rate Covenant

In the Indenture, the District covenants
that it will fix, prescribe, revise and collect
rates, fees and charges for the services

and facilities furnished by the Enterprise
during each fiscal year which, taking into
account allowances for contingencies,
are sufficient to yield estimated Net
Revenues which, together with the
amount of Tax Revenues estimated by
the District to be received during such
Fiscal Year, are at least equal to 125% of
the aggregate amount of principal of and
interest on the Bonds and any Parity
Obligations coming due and payable dur-
ing such Fiscal Year. See “SECURITY
FOR THE BONDS - Rate Covenant”.

Parity Obligations

In addition to the 1993 Bonds, the District
has two certificates of participation issues
and one other revenue bond outstanding
which are also secured by a first lien
pledge of the Tax Revenues and Net
Revenues. The District may issue addi-
tional obligations on parity with or subor-
dinate to the Bonds under certain
circumstances as set forth in the
Indenture. See “SECURITY FOR THE
BONDS - Limits on Parity Obligations”.

Bond Insurance

The scheduled payment of principal of
and interest on the Bonds when due will
be guaranteed under an insurance policy
to be issued concurrently with the deliv-
ery of the Bonds by FINANCIAL SECURI-
TY ASSURANCE INC. See “Municipal
Bond Insurance” and APPENDIX F-
Specimen Municipal Bond Insurance
Policy” herein.

Selected Essential Facts

Table 2 shows selected essential facts re-
lating to the Bonds and the District.



Table 2
Selected Essential Facts

The Bonds o -

Principal Amount $ 3,795,000
Dated Date - April 8, 2003
Rating ~_Aaa/AAA FSA Insured
Maturities (July 1) 2004 to 2021
Average Life _10.7 Years
Bank Qualified Yes

Maturities subject to optional redemption
Purpose

~July 1, 2010 to 2021
Refunding of 1993 Bonds

Payment Source

Tax Revenues & Enterprise

~__Net Revenues

Obligation

Coverage Covenant

Coverage Fiscal Year 2001/02
Service Area

Financial and Economic Data

Absolute and Unconditional

1.25x
4 .13x

Coastal area of Soqthe:_r_n Orange County, CA

Primary Customer Type

Largest Customer as Percentage of Total Sales
2002/03 Assessed Valuation

Ratio direct debt to assessed value

Ratio combined direct debt to assessed value

Table 3
Estimated Sources and Uses of Funds
to Refund the 1993 Bonds

Sources of Funds

Prihéipal Amount of Bonds
Transfer from Prior Issue Funds
Total Sources of Funds

Uses of Funds

1993 Escrow Deposit
Cost of Issuance 1
Debt Service Reserve
Total Uses of Funds

1. Includes underwriter's discount, legal and rating agencies' fees,
the premium for the financial guaranty insurance policy relating to
the Bonds, and other costs of issuance.

___Residential

2.20%

~__$6,806,050.627

0.10%
 053%

$3,795,000
468349
$4.,263,349

$3,798,623
158,318
306,408

) $4,263,349

THE BONDS

Sale of the Bonds

Bids for the purchase of the Bonds will be
received on behalf of the District at the of-
fices of DLCO Financial, 15625 E.
Stafford Street, Suite 200, Industry,
California 91744, Wednesday, March 25,
2003. The winning bidder was Stone &
Youngberg LLC which bid at a true inter-
est rate of 4.197%. The Bonds offered for
sale are generally described below.
Details of the terms of the sale are con-
tained in the Official Notice of Sale.

General Description

The Bonds are being issued in fully regis-
tered form without coupons in denomina-
tions of $5,000 or any integral multiple
thereof. The Bonds will be dated as of the
date of original delivery of the Bonds and
will mature on July 1 in the years and in
the respective principal amounts and bear
interest at the respective rates per
annum, as set forth in Table 1.

Interest on the Bonds is payable semian-
nually on July 1 and January 1, calculated
on the basis of a 360-day year comprised
of twelve 30-day months, commencing
July 1, 2003 (each, an “Interest Payment
Date"). Interest on the Bonds is payable
from the Interest Payment Date next
preceding the date of authentication
thereof unless:

(a) aBond is authenticated between an
Interest Payment Date and the 15th cal-
endar day of the month immediately pre-
ceding such Interest Payment Date (each,
a “Record Date”), in which event it will
bear interest from such Interest Payment
Date; or

(b) a Bond is authenticated on or before
the first Record Date, in which event inter-
est thereon will be payable from the date
of original delivery of the Bonds; or

(c) interest on any Bond is in default as
of the date of authentication thereof, in
which event interest thereon will be
payable from the date to which interest
has been paid in full, payable on each
Interest Payment Date.

Interest is payable on each Interest
Payment Date to the persons in whose
names the ownership of the Bonds is reg-
istered on the Bond registration books
maintained by the Trustee (the
“Registration Books”) at the close of busi-

3



ness on the immediately preceding
Record Date, except as provided below.
Interest on any Bond which is not punctu-
ally paid or duly provided for on any
Interest Payment Date is payable to the
person in whose name the ownership of
such Bond is registered on the
Registration Books at the close of busi-
ness on a special record date for the pay-
ment of such defaulted interest to be fixed
by the Trustee, notice of which is given

to such Owner by first-class mail not

less than 10 days prior to such special
record date.

The Trustee will pay interest on the Bonds
by check of the Trustee mailed by first
class mail, postage prepaid, on each
Interest Payment Date to the Owners of
the Bonds at their respective addresses
shown on the Registration Books as of
the close of business on the preceding
Record Date. At the written request of the
Owner of Bonds in an aggregate principal
amount of at least $1,000,000, which writ-
ten request is on file with the Trustee as
of any Record Date, the Trustee will pay
interest on such Bonds on each succeed-
ing Interest Payment Date by wire transfer
in immediately available funds to such ac-
count of a financial institution within the
United States of America as specified in
such written request, which written re-
quest will remain in effect until rescinded
in writing by the Owner. The Trustee will
pay principal on the Bonds in lawful
money of the United States of America by
check of the Trustee upon presentation
and surrender thereof at the Office of the
Trustee.

The Bonds will be initially issued in book-
entry form as described more fully below.
So long as the Bonds are held in book-
entry form, payment of the principal of
and interest on the Bonds, and provisions
relating to the transfer and exchange of
the Bonds, will be governed by the proce-
dures established under the book-entry
system. See "Book-Entry System" and
APPENDIX E: Book Entry Only System
below.

Bank Qualified

The Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the
"Tax Code") generally prohibits the deduc-
tion of interest on indebtedness incurred
or continued by a bank or other financial
institution to purchase or carry tax-exempt
obligations, such as the Certificates. The
Tax Code, however, contains an exception
to this provision which permits an 80 per-

cent deduction for interest expense of
banks and other financial institutions allo-
cable to their investments in tax-exempt
obligations to the extent they purchase
obligations of certain small governmentai
units (i) that together with all subordinate
entities thereof do not reasonably expect
to issue in the aggregate more than
$10,000,000 of tax-exempt obligations
(not counting private activity bonds other
than qualified 501(c)(3) bonds) in a calen-
dar year, and (ii) that designate such
obligations as qualifying for the exception.
The District has (i) represented that it ex-
pects that it and all subordinate entities
thereof will not issue in the aggregate
more than $10,000,000 of tax-exempt
obligations during calendar year 2003,
and (ii) designated the Bonds as qualify-
ing for such exception.

Optional Redemption

The Bonds maturing on or before July 1,
2009, are not subject to redemption prior
to their respective stated maturities. The
Bonds maturing on or after July 1, 2010,
are subject to redemption in whole, orin
part among maturities on such basis as
specified by the District, and in any event
by lot within a maturity, at the option of
the District, from any available source of
funds, on any date on or after July 1,
2009, at a redemption price equal to
100% of the principal amount thereof to
be redeemed together with accrued inter-
est thereon to the redemption date, plus a
redemption premium for each Bond to be
redeemed equal to 1/8 of 1% for each
whole year and any remaining fraction of
a whole year between the redemption
date and the stated maturity date of

such Bond.

Mandatory Sinking Account
Redemption

The Bonds maturing July 1, 2021, consti-
tute Term Bonds which are subject to
Mandatory Sinking Account Redemption,
by lot, on July 1 of each year as shown in
the following table, from Mandatory
Sinking Account payments made by the
District at a price equal to the principal
amount thereof to be redeemed together
with accrued interest thereon to the re-
demption date, without premium.

Mandatory Sinking Principal

Fund Redemption Amount to be
Date (July 1) Redeemed
2020 $275,000
2021 (Maturity) 290,000

Special Mandatory Redemption
From Insurance and Sale Proceeds

The Bonds are also subject to redemption
as a whole or in part, on any Interest
Payment Date, from and to the extent of
the proceeds of disposition of Enterprise
properties or the proceeds of hazard in-
surance not used to repair or rebuild the
Enterprise, which proceeds are required
to be used for such purpose, at a redemp-
tion price equal to 100% of the principal
amount of the Bonds plus interest ac-
crued thereon to the date fixed for re-
demption, without premium.

Notice of Redemption

The Trustee on behalf and at the expense
of the District shall mail (by first class
mail) notice of any redemption to the re-
spective Owners of any Bonds designated
for redemption at their respective ad-
dresses appearing on the Registration
Books, and to the Bond Insurer, the
Securities Depositories and to one or
more Information Services, at least 30 but
not more than 60 days prior to the date
fixed for redemption; provided, however,
that neither failure to receive any such no-
tice so mailed nor any defect therein will
affect the validity of the proceedings for
the redemption of such Bonds or the ces-
sation of the accrual of interest thereon.



Such notice must state the date of the no-
tice, the redemption date, the redemption
place and the redemption price and must
designate the CUSIP numbers, the Bond
numbers and the maturity or maturities (in
the event of redemption of all of the
Bonds of such maturity or maturities in
whole) of the Bonds to be redeemed, and
must require that such Bonds be then sur-
rendered at the designated office of the
Trustee identified in such notice for re-
demption at the redemption price, giving
notice also that further interest on such
Bonds will not accrue from and after the
redemption date.

Manner of Redemption

Whenever provision is made for the re-
demption of less than all of the Bonds, the
Trustee shall select the Bonds to be re-
deemed by lot in any manner that the
Trustee in its sole discretion deems ap-
propriate. For purposes of such selection,
all Bonds will be deemed to be comprised
of separate $5,000 denominations and
such separate denominations will be treat-
ed as separate Bonds that may be sepa-
rately redeemed.

Partial Redemption of Bonds

If only a portion of any Bond is called for
redemption, then upon surrender of such
Bond the District shall execute and the

Trustee shall authenticate and deliver to
the Owner thereof, at the expense of the

District, a new Bond or Bonds of the
same series and maturity date, of autho-
rized denominations in aggregate princi-
pal amount equal to the unredeemed
portion of the Bond to be redeemed.

Effect of Redemption

From and after the date fixed for redemp-
tion, if notice of redemption has been duly
mailed and funds available for the pay-
ment of the principal of and interest (and
premium, if any) on the Bonds so called
for redemption have been duly provided,
such Bonds so called shall cease to be
entitled to any benefit under the Indenture
other than the right to receive payment of
the redemption price, and no interest
shall accrue thereon from and after the
redemption date specified in such notice.

Book-Entry System

The Bonds will be registered in the name
of Cede & Co., as nominee of the
Depository Trust Company, New York,
New York (“DTC"). DTC will act as securi-
ties depository of the Bonds. Ownership
interests in the Bonds may be purchased
in book-entry form only, in denominations
of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof.
While DTC acts as securities depository
for the Bonds, all payments of principa! of
and interest and premium, if any, on the
Bonds will be made to Cede & Co., as
nominee of DTC. For information with re-
spect to the payment and transfer of the
Bonds, see APPENDIX E: Book-Entry
Only System.

No Litigation

There is no litigation pending or, to the
District's knowledge, threatened in any
way to restrain or enjoin the issuance, ex-
ecution or delivery of the Bonds, to con-
test the validity of the Bonds, the
Indenture or any proceedings of the

District with respect thereto. In the opin-
ion of the District and its counsel, there
are no lawsduits or claims pending against
the District which will materially affect the
District's finances so as to impair the abil-
ity to pay principal of and interest on the
Bonds when due.

Tax Opinion

In the opinion of Jones Hall, A
Professional Law Corporation, San
Francisco, California, Bond Counsel, sub-
ject, however, to the qualifications set
forth below, under existing law, the inter-
est on the Bonds is excluded from gross
income for federal income tax purposes,
and such interest is not an item of tax
preference for purposes of the federal ai-
ternative minimum tax imposed on indi-
viduals and corporations, provided,
however, that, for the purpose of comput-
ing the alternative minimum tax imposed
on corporations (as defined for federal in-
come tax purposes), such interest is
taken into account in determining certain
income and earnings.

The opinions set forth in the preceding
paragraph are subject to the condition
that the District comply with all require-
ments of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986 that must be satisfied subsequent
to the issuance of the Bonds in order that
such interest be, or continue to be, ex-
cluded from gross income for federal in-
come tax purposes. The District has
covenanted to comply with each such re-
quirement. Failure to comply with certain
of such requirements may cause the in-
clusion of such interest in gross income
for federal income tax purposes to be
retroactive to the date of issuance of the
Bonds.

In the further opinion of Bond Counsel,
interest on the Bonds is exempt from
California personal income taxes.

Owners of the Bonds should also be
aware that the ownership or disposition
of, or the accrual or receipt of interest on,
the Bonds may have federal or state tax
consequences other than as described
above. Bond Counsel expresses no opin-
ion regarding any federal or state tax
consequences arising with respect to the
Bonds other than as expressly described
above. A copy of Bond Counsel's pro-
posed opinion, including its opinion as to
the tax status of the Bonds, is attached to
this Official Statement as APPENDIX C.



Table 4
Debt Service Payments

Semiannual Fiscal
Date Principal Interest Total Total
7/01/2003 $33,340.06 $33,340.06 $33,340.06
1/01/2004 72,303.75 72,303.75
7/01/2004 $160,000 72,303.75 232,303.75 304,607.50
1/01/2005 70,703.75 70,703.75
7/01/2005 165,000 70,703.75 235,703.75 306,407.50
1/01/2006 69,053.75 69,053.75
7/01/2006 165,000 69,053.75 234,053.75 303,107.50
1/01/2007 67,403.75 67,403.75
7/01/2007 170,000 67,403.75 237,403.75 304,807.50
1/01/2008 65,278.75 65,278.75
7/01/2008 175,000 65,278.75 240,278.75 305,557.50
1/01/2009 62,653.75 62,653.75
7/01/2009 180,000 62,653.75 242,653.75 305,307.50
1/01/2010 59,503.75 59,503.75
7/01/2010 185,000 59,503.75 244 ,503.75 304,007.50
1/01/2011 56,266.25 56,266.25
7/01/2011 190,000 56,266.25 246,266.25 302,532.50
1/01/2012 52,846.25 52,846.25
7/01/2012 200,000 52,846.25 252,846.25 305,692.50
1/01/2013 48,846.25 48,846.25
7/01/2013 205,000 48,846.25 253,846.25 302,692.50
1/01/2014 4474625 44,746.25
7/01/2014 215,000 44,746.25 259,746.25 304,492.50
1/01/2015 ' 40,446.25 40,446.25
7/01/2015 225,000 40,446.25 ' 265,446.25 305,892.50
1/01/2016 35,665.00 35,665.00
7/01/2016 230,000 35,665.00 265,665.00 301,330.00
1/01/2017 - 30.490.00 30,490.00
70012017 245,000 30,490.00 275,490.00 305,980.00
1/01/2018 24977 50 24,977.50
7/01/2018 255,000 24,977.50 279,977.50 304,955.00
1/01/2019 19,240.00 - 19,240.00
7/01/2019 265,000 1924000 284,240.00 303,480.00
1/01/2020 13.277.50 13,277.50
7/01/2020 275,000 13.277.50 288,277.50 301,555.00
1/01/2021 6.815.00 6,815.00
7/01/2021 290,000 6,815.00 296,815.00 303,630.00

Total $3,795,000 $1,714,375.06 $5.509,375.06 $5,509,375.06



SECURITY FOR THE BONDS

Pledge of Tax Revenues
and Net Revenues

The Bonds are secured by a first pledge
of all of the Tax Revenues and all of the
Net Revenues of the District. In addition,
the Bonds are secured by a pledge of all
of the moneys in the Bond Service Fund
and the Reserve Fund which are estab-
lished under the Indenture, including all
amounts derived from the investment of
such moneys. The Bonds and any Parity
Obligations are equally secured by a
pledge, charge and lien upon the Tax
Revenues and the Net Revenues and
such moneys without priority for series,
issue, number or date and the payment of
the interest on and principal of the Bonds
shall be and are secured by an exclusive
pledge, charge and lien upon the Tax
Revenues, the Net Revenues and such
moneys. So long as any of the Bonds are
outstanding, the Tax Revenues, the Net
Revenues and such moneys may not be
used for any other purpose; except as ex-
pressly permitted by the Indenture.

The Net Revenues which are pledged to
the Bonds are defined generally to be all
Gross Revenues received by the District
from the operation of the District's water
supply, treatment and distribution system,
and the District's wastewater collection,
treatment and disposal system (collective-
ly, “the Enterprise”), less all Operation
and Maintenance Costs paid by the
District for maintaining and operating the
Enterprise. For the complete definition

of these and other terms, see APPENDIX
B — Summary of Certain Provisions of
the Indenture.

Flow of Funds

The District has previously established the
General Fund, which it will continue to
hold and maintain for the purposes and
uses set forth in the Indenture. The
District shall deposit all Tax Revenues and
Gross Revenues in the General Fund
promptly upon the receipt thereof, and
shall apply amounts in the General Fund
solely for the uses and purposes set forth

in the Indenture and for the uses and pur-
poses set forth in the documents authoriz-
ing the issuance of any Parity Obligations.

It is the intention of the District that the
Bonds will be payable entirely from the
Tax Revenues, and that all of the Tax
Revenues received in any Fiscal Year will
be applied to the payment of the principal
of and interest on the Bonds before

any Net Revenues are applied for

such purpose.

The District is required to withdraw
amounts on deposit in the General Fund
and apply such amounts at the times and
for the purposes, and in the priority, as fol-
lows:

(i) Bond Service Fund. On or before the
3rd Business Day preceding each Interest
Payment Date, the District will withdraw
from the General Fund and pay to the
Trustee for deposit into the Bond Service
Fund (which the Trustee will establish and
hold in trust under the Indenture) an
amount which, together with other avail-
able amounts then on deposit in the Bond
Service Fund, is at least equal to the ag-
gregate amount of principal of and inter-
est coming due and payable on the Bonds
on such Interest Payment Date, including
the principal amount of the Term Bonds
subject to mandatory sinking fund re-
demption on such Interest Payment Date.

(i) Reserve Fund. If the amount on de-
posit in the Reserve Fund at any time falls
below the Reserve Requirement. the
Trustee will promptly notify the District of
such fact and the District will promptly (i)
withdraw the amount ofsuch insufficiency
from available Tax Revenues (first) and
Net Revenues (second) on deposit in the
General Fund, and (ii) transfer such
amount to the Trustee for deposit in the
Reserve Fund. No deposit need be made
in the Reserve Fund so long as the bal-
ance therein at least equals the Reserve
Requirement. If the amount on deposit in
the Reserve Fund exceeds the Reserve
Requirement, the Trustee will transfer
such excess amount to the Bond Service
Fund. See “Reserve Fund” below.

(i) Redemption Fund. If the District
elects to redeem outstanding Bonds, the
District will transfer to the Trustee for de-
posit into the Redemption Fund (which
the Trustee will thereupon establish and
hold in trust under the indenture) an
amount at |least equal to the redemption
price of the Bonds, excluding accrued in-

terest, which is payable from the Bond
Service Fund. In addition, the District will
transfer or cause to be transferred to the
Trustee all amounts required to redeem
any Bonds which are subject to redemp-
tion under the Indenture, when and as
such amounts become available. The
Trustee is required to apply amounts in
the Redemption Fund solely for the pur-
pose of paying the redemption price of
Bonds to be redeemed under the
Indenture. Following any such redemption
of the Bonds, any moneys remaining in
the Redemption Fund will be transferred
by the Trustee to the District for deposit
into the General Fund.

The District covenants under the
Indenture to manage, conserve and apply
moneys in the General Fund in such a
manner that all of the foregoing deposits
will be made at the times and in the
amounts so required. Subject to the fore-
going sentence, so long as no Event of
Default has occurred and is continuing
under the Indenture, the District may at
any time use and apply moneys in the
General Fund for any one or more of the
purposes relating to the Enterprise. All
moneys in the General Fund may be in-
vested by the District from time to time in
any securities in which the District may
legally invest funds subject to its control.

Reserve Fund

In order to further secure the payment of
principal of and interest on the Bonds, a
portion of the Bond proceeds will be de-
posited into the Reserve Fund in an
amount equal to the Reserve
Requirement. The “‘Reserve Requirement”
is defined in the Indenture to mean an
amount equal to the maximum amount of
principal of and interest on the Bonds
coming due and payable in the current or
any future Bond Year.

If the amounts on deposit in the Bond
Service Fund on any Interest Payment
Date are insufficient to pay the principal
of and interest on the Bonds then coming
due, the Trustee is required under the
Indenture to withdraw the amount of such
insufficiency from the Reserve Fund and
transfer it to the Bond Service Fund. On
the date on which all Bonds are retired,
any moneys then on deposit in the
Reserve Fund will be withdrawn by the
Trustee and paid to the District.

As described above, if at any time the
amount on deposit in the Reserve Fund is
less than the Reserve Requirement, the
District is required to pay from Tax
Revenues to the Trustee the amount of
such deficiency as provided in the
Indenture. Any amounts on deposit in the

7



Reserve Fund at any time in excess of the
Reserve Requirement will be transferred
by the Trustee to the Bond Service Fund.

Rate Covenant

The District will fix, prescribe, revise and
collect rates, fees and charges for the ser-
vices and facilities furnished by the
Enterprise during each Fiscal Year that
are at least sufficient, after making al-
lowances for contingencies and error in
the estimates, to pay the following
amounts in the following order:

(i) all Operation and Maintenance Costs
estimated by the District to become due
and payable in the Fiscal Year;

(ii) The principal of and interest on the
Bonds and any Parity Obligations as they
come due and payable during the Fiscal
Year, without preference or priority;

(iii) all payments coming due and
payable during the Fiscal Year and re-
quired for compliance with the Indenture
and the documents authorizing any Parity
Obligations; and

(iv) all payments required to meet any
other obligations of the District which are
charges, liens, encumbrances upon or
payable from the Gross Revenues during
the Fiscal Year.

In addition to the covenants set forth im-
mediately above, the District will fix, pre-
scribe, revise and collect rates, fees and
charges for the services and facilities fur-
nished by the Enterprise during each
Fiscal Year which, taking into account al-
lowances for contingencies, are sufficient
to yield estimated Net Revenues which,
together with the amount of Tax Revenues
estimated by the District to be received
during such Fiscal Year, are at least equal
to 125% of the aggregate amount of prin-
cipal of and interest on the Bonds and any
Parity Obligations coming due and
payable during such Fiscal Year.

Limits on Parity Obligations

The District may issue its bonds, notes or
other obligations which are secured by a
pledge of and lien on the Tax Revenues
and the Net Revenues on a parity the
pledge and lien which secures the Bonds
(the “Parity Obligations”) in such principal
amount as it determines, subject to the
following conditions precedent:

(a) No Event of Default (or no event with
respect to which notice has been given
and which, once all notice of grace peri-
ods have passed, would constitute an
Event of Default) has occurred and is
continuing; and

(b) The Tax Revenues and the Net
Revenues (exciuding Development
impact Fees), calculated in accordance
with sound accounting principles, as
shown by the books of the District for the
latest Fiscal Year or as shown by the
books of the District for any more recent
12 month period selected by the District,
in either case verified by a certificate or
opinion of an Independent Accountant or
Financial Consultant employed by the
District, plus (at the option of the District)
certain Additional Revenues, must be at
least equal to 125% of the amount of
Maximum Annual Debt Service; and

(c) Interest on the Parity Obligations
may be payable only on January 1 and
July 1, and principal thereof may be
payable only on July 1 in any year in
which principal is payable and

(d) There must be established from the
proceeds of the Parity Obligations a re-
serve fund for the security of the Parity
Obligations, in an amount equal to the
lesser of (i) the maximum amount of debt
service required to be paid by the District
with respect to the Parity Obligations dur-
ing any Fiscal Year, or (ii) the maximum
amount then permitted under the Internal
Revenue Code. Such amount may be
maintained in the form of a surety bond,
letter of credit or other credit instrument,
provided that the maintenance of such re-
serve fund in such form does not ad-
versely affect any rating then assigned to
the Bonds. Any reserve established for
Parity Obligations will only secure those
Parity Obligations, and the Bond owners
will have no interest in such reserve.

Net Proceeds of Insurance

The District will at all times maintain with
responsible insurers all such insurance

on the Enterprise as is customarily main-
tained with respect to works and proper-
ties of like character against accident to,
loss of or damage to the Enterprise. If

any useful part of the Enterprise is dam-

aged or destroyed, such part must be re-
stored to usable condition. All amounts
collected from insurance against accident
to or destruction of any portion of the
Enterprise must be used to repair or re-
build such damaged or destroyed portion
of the Enterprise, and to the extent not so
applied, must be applied on a pro rata
basis to redeem the Bonds and any Parity
Obligations in accordance with the
Indenture and the documents authorizing
such Parity Obligations, respectively. The
District shall also maintain, with responsi-
ble insurers, worker's compensation insur-
ance and insurance against public liability
and property damage to the extent rea-
sonably necessary to protect the District,
the Trustee and the Owners of the Bonds.

All amounts collected from insurance
against accident to or destruction of any
portion of the Enterprise constitute Gross
Revenues and must be used to repair, re-
build or replace such damaged or de-
stroyed portion of the Enterprise or
otherwise as permitted by the Indenture.

Debt Service Requirements
Table 4 shows the estimated debt service
payable on the Bonds.



BOND INSURANCE

Bond Insurance Policy

Concurrently with the issuance of the
Bonds, Financial Security Assurance Inc.
("Financial Security") will issue its
Municipal Bond Insurance Policy for the
Bonds (the "Policy"). The Policy guaran-
tees the scheduled payment of principal
of and interest on the Bonds when due as
set forth in the form of the Policy included
as an exhibit to this Official Statement.

The Policy is not covered by any insur-
ance security or guaranty fund estab-
lished under New York, California,
Connecticut or Florida insurance law.

Financial Security Assurance Inc.

Financial Security is a New York domi-
ciled insurance company and a wholly
owned subsidiary of Financial Security
Assurance Holdings Ltd. ("Holdings").
Holdings is an indirect subsidiary of
Dexia, S.A., a publicly held Belgian cor-
poration. Dexia, S.A., through its bank
subsidiaries, is primarily engaged in the
business of public finance in France,
Belgium and other European countries.
No shareholder of Holdings or Financial
Security is liable for the obligations of
Financial Security.

At September 30, 2002 Financial
Security's total policyholders' surplus and
contingency reserves were approximately
$1,728,433,000 and its total unearned
premium reserve was approximately
$972,390,000 in accordance with statuto-
ry accounting principles. At September
30, 2002, Financial Security's total share-
holder’s equity was approximately
$1,928,564,000 and its total net unearned
premium reserve was approximately
$814,684,000 in accordance with gener-
ally accepted accounting principles.

The financial statements included as ex-
hibits to the annual and quarterly reports
filed by Holdings with the Securities and
Exchange Commission are hereby incor-
porated herein by reference. Also incor-
porated herein by reference are any such
financial statements so filed from the date
of this Official Statement until the termi-
nation of the offering of the Bonds.
Copies of materials incorporated by refer-
ence will be provided upon request to
Financial Security Assurance Inc.: 350
Park Avenue, New York, New York

10022, Attention: Communications
Department (telephone (212) 826-0100).

The Policy does not protect investors
against changes in market value of the
Bonds, which market value may be im-
paired as a result of changes in prevailing
interest rates, changes in applicable rat-
ings or other causes. Financial Security
makes no representation regarding the
Bonds or the advisability of investing in
the Bonds. Financial Security makes no
representation regarding the Official
Statement, nor has it participated in the
preparation thereof, except that Financial
Security has provided to the Issuer the in-
formation presented under this caption for
inclusion in the Official Statement

THE REFUNDING PLAN

Description

That portion of the proceeds from the sale
of the Bonds not set aside in the Reserve
Fund or used to pay costs of issuance of
the Bonds, will be deposited into an
Escrow Fund (the “Escrow Fund”), which
will be established with BNY Western
Trust Company, as escrow bank (the
“Escrow Bank”) under an Escrow Deposit
and Trust Agreement with the District and
the Coastal Districts Financing Authority
(the “Escrow Agreement”). Moneys in the
Escrow Fund, including amounts trans-
ferred from available funds which are cur-
rently held for the 1993 Bonds, will be
used exclusively to pay the principal of
and interest and redemption premium on
the 1993 Bonds.

Pursuant to the terms of the Escrow
Agreement, an amount required to pay
100% of the principal of and interest and
redemption premium on the 1993 Bonds
coming due on July 1, 2003, will be initial-
ly deposited into the Escrow Fund. Such
amount will be invested in a U.S. govern-
ment securities money market fund of the
Escrow Bank through July 1, 2003. Under
the Escrow Agreement, the District irrevo-
cably elects to redeem all of the 1993
Bonds on July 1, 2003. As a result of the
investment and application of funds under
the Escrow Agreement, the 1993 Bonds
will be defeased in full upon the issuance
of the Bonds, and will be payable solely
from amounts held for that purpose under
the Escrow Agreement.

Verification

Grant Thornton, of Minneapoiis,
Minnesota, independent public accoun-
tants, upon delivery of the Bonds, will de-
liver a report on the mathematical
accuracy of certain computations con-
tained in schedules provided to them re-
lating to the sufficiency of monies and
securities deposited into the Escrow Fund
to pay, when due, the principal, interest
and redemption premium on the 1993
Bonds to be refunded. The report of Grant
Thornton will include the statement that
the scope of its engagement is limited to
verifying the mathematical accuracy of the
computations contained in such schedules
provided to it, and that it has no obligation
to update its report because of events oc-
curring, or data or information coming to
its attention, subsequent to the date of

its report.
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RISK FACTORS

The following information should be con-
sidered by prospective investors in evalu-
ating the Bonds. However, the following
does not purport to be an exhaustive list-
ing of risks and other considerations
which may be relevant to investing in the
Bonds. In addition, the order in which the
following information is presented is not
intended to reflect the relative importance
of any such risks.

The purchase of the Bonds involves in-
vestment risk. If a risk factor materializes
to a sufficient degree, it could delay or
prevent payment of principal of and inter-
est on the Bonds. Such risk factors in-
clude, but are not limited to, the following
matters and should be considered, along
with other information in this Official
Statement, by potential investors.

Revenues; Rate Covenant

Revenues are dependent upon the de-
mand for water services, which can be af-
fected by population factors, more
stringent treatment standards, regulations,
or problems with the District's water col-
lection, treatment and disposal facilities.
There can be no assurance that water
service demand will be consistent with the
levels contemplated in this Official
Statement. A decrease in the demand for
water services could require an increase
in rates or charges in order to comply with
the rate covenant. The District's ability to
meet its rate covenant is dependent upon
its capacity to increase rates without dri-
ving down demand to a level insufficient to
meet debt service on the Bonds, and may
be subject to the restrictions discussed
below under “Proposition 218.”

District Expenses

There can be no assurance that expenses
of the District will be consistent with the
levels contemplated in this Official
Statement. Changes in technology,
changes in quality standards, increases in
the cost of operation or other expenses
could require substantial increases in
rates or charges in order to comply with
the rate covenant in the Indenture. Such
rate increases could drive down demand
for water and related services or other-
wise increase the possibility of nonpay-
ment of the Bonds.

California has recently experienced ad-
verse conditions with regard to the cost of
electricity throughout most of the State.
The situation has resulted in the filing of
bankruptcy by Pacific Gas & Electric
(“PG&E"), the primary power supplier for
northern California, and increased electric-
ity billings for most users of electricity in
California. The short and long-range im-
pact of these developments are unknown,
but the cost and availability of electricity
has the potential to significantly affect eco-
nomic development throughout the State.
The cost of electricity has not adversely
affected the operation or financial condi-
tion of the District's Enterprise, although
the District cannot predict the potential im-
pacts of any future energy cost increases.

Insurance

The Indenture obligates the District to ob-
tain and keep in force various forms of in-
surance or self-insurance, subject to
deductibles, for repair or replacement of a
portion of the Enterprise in the event of
damage or destruction to such portion of
the Enterprise. No assurance can be given
as to the adequacy of any such self-insur-
ance or any additional insurance to fund
necessary repair or replacement of any
other portion of the Enterprise. Significant
damage to the Enterprise could cause the
District to be unable to generate sufficient
Net Revenues to pay principal of and in-
terest on the Bonds.

Limitations on Remedies Available
to Bond Owners

The ability of the District to comply with its
covenants under the Indenture and to gen-
erate Net Revenues sufficient to pay prin-
cipal of and interest on the Bonds may be
adversely affected by actions and events
outside of the control of the District, and
may be adversely affected by actions
taken (or not taken) by voters, property
owners, taxpayers or payers of assess-
ments, fees and charges. See “Proposition
218" below. Furthermore, any remedies
available to the Owners of the Bonds upon
the occurrence of an Event of Default
under the Indenture are in many respects
dependent upon judicial actions, which are
often subject to discretion and delay and
could prove both expensive and time con-
suming to obtain.

In addition to the limitations on Bond own-
ers’ remedies contained in the Indenture,
the rights and obligations under the Bonds
and the Indenture may be subject to the
following: the United States Bankruptcy
Code and applicable bankruptcy, insolven-
cy, reorganization, moratorium, or similar
laws relating to or affecting the enforce-
ment of creditors’ rights generally, now or
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hereafter in effect, usual equity principles
which may limit the specific enforcement
under State law of certain remedies; the
exercise by the United States of America
of the powers delegated to it by the
Federal Constitution; and the reasonable
and necessary exercise, in certain excep-
tional situations, of the police power inher-
ent in the sovereignty of the State of
California and its governmental bodies in
the interest of serving a significant and le-
gitimate public purpose. Bankruptcy pro-
ceedings, or the exercise of powers by the
federal or state government, if initiated,
could subject the Owners of the Bonds to
judicial discretion and interpretation of
their rights in bankruptcy or otherwise, and
consequently may entail risks of delay, lim-
itation or modification of their rights.

Natural Disasters

From time to time, the District is subject to
natural calamities that may adversely af-
fect economic activity in the District which
therefore may have a negative impact on
District finances. There can be no assur-
ance that the occurrence of any natural
calamity would not cause substantial inter-
ference to the Enterprise, or that the
District would have insurance or other
resources available to make repairs to

the Enterprise, possibly impacting

Net Revenues.

The District, like most regions in
California, is an area of significant seismic
activity, and therefor, is subject to poten-
tially destructive earthquakes. The casual-
ty and liability insurance may not cover
losses due to earthquake. The Indenture
requires the District to obtain and maintain
insurance with responsible insurers all
such insurance on the Enterprise as is
customarily maintained with respect to
works and properties of like character, and
does not specifically require the District to
procure earthquake insurance. If there
were to be an occurrence of severe seis-
mic activity in the District, there could be
substantial damage to and interference
with the District's Enterprise, which could
impact the receipt of Net Revenues.

Loss of Tax-Exemption

As discussed under the caption “TAX
MATTERS" herein, interest on the Bonds
could become includable in gross income
for purposes of federal income taxation
retroactive to the date the Bonds were is-
sued, as a result of future acts or omis-
sions of the District in violation of its
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covenants in the Indenture. Should such
an event of taxability occur, the Bonds are
not subject to special redemption and will
remain Outstanding until maturity or until
redeemed under other provisions set forth
in the Indenture.

Proposition 218

Under the California Constitution, the
power of initiative is reserved to the voters
for the purpose of enacting statutes and
constitutional amendments. Over the past
18 years, the voters have exercised this
power through the adoption of Proposition
13 and similar measures, including the ini-
tiative approved as Proposition 218 in the
general election held on November 5,
1996. Any such initiative may affect the
collection of fees, taxes and other types of
revenue by local agencies such as the
District. Subject to overriding federal con-
stitutional principles, such collection may
be materially and adversely affected by
voter-approved initiatives, possibly to the
extent of creating cash-flow problems in
the payment of outstanding obligations
such as the Bonds.

On November 5, 1996, California voters
approved Proposition 218, the “Right to
Vote on Taxes Act.” Proposition 218 added
Articles XIIIC and XIIID to the California
Constitution, imposing certain voting re-
quirements and other limitations on the im-
position of new or increased taxes,
assessments and property-related fees
and charges. Proposition 218 states that
all taxes imposed by local governments
will be deemed to be either general taxes
or special taxes. Special purpose districts,
including school districts, have no power
to levy general taxes. No local government
may impose, extend or increase any gen-
eral tax unless and until such tax is sub-
mitted to the electorate and approved by a
maijority vote. No local government may
impose, extend or increase any special tax
unless and until such tax is submitted to
the electorate and approved by a two-
thirds vote.



Proposition 218 also provides that no tax,
assessment, fee or charge may be as-
sessed by any agency upon any parcel of
property or upon any person as an inci-
dent of property ownership except (a) the
ad valorem property tax imposed under
Article XIIl and Article XIlIA of the
California Constitution, (b) any special tax
receiving a two-thirds vote under the
California Constitution, and (c) assess-
ments, fees and charges for property re-
lated services as provided in Proposition
218. Proposition 218 provides voter re-
quirements for assessments and fees and
charges imposed as an incident of proper-
ty ownership, other than fees and charges
for Water, Wastewater, and refuse collec-
tion services. In addition, all assessments
and fees and charges imposed as an inci-
dent of property ownership are subjected
to various additional procedures, such as
hearings and stricter and more individual-
ized benefit requirements and findings
and, except for fees and charges for
Water, Wastewater and refuse collection
services, majority vote approval at an
election by the owners of properties
subject thereto.

Proposition 218 also extends the initiative
power to reducing or repealing any local
taxes, assessments, fees and charges.
This extension of the initiative power is
not limited to taxes imposed on or after
November 6, 1996, the effective date of
Proposition 218, and could result in
retroactive repeal or reduction in any ex-
isting taxes, assessments, fees and
charges, subject to overriding federal and
state constitutional principles relating to
the impairment of contracts.

Proposition 218 also provides that any
general tax imposed, extended or in-
creased without voter approval on or after
January 1, 1995, and prior to the effective
date of Proposition 218 may continue to
be imposed only if approved by a majority
vote of the voters in an election held by
November, 1998. The District did not im-
pose, extend or increase any general tax
within the January 1, 1995 to November
6, 1996, time period.

The foregoing discussion of Proposition
218 should not be considered an exhaus-
tive or authoritative treatment of the is-
sues. Based on advice from the District
Counsel and in reliance on a published
opinion of the California Attorney General,
the District has taken the position that
Proposition 218 does not apply to rates
and charges for the Enterprise, since such
rates and charges are not “property-relat-
ed fees and charges” within the meaning
of Proposition 218. No assurances can be
given that such position, if challenged,
would be upheld by the California courts.
Therefore, the District cannot predict
whether Proposition 218 will ultimately
apply to the rates and charges levied for
the Enterprise, or the impact which
Proposition 218 might have on the finan-
cial condition of the Enterprise if it were
held to be applicable to it.

Environmental Regulation

The kind and degree of water service and
wastewater service which is effected
through the Enterprise is regulated, to a
large extent, by the federal government
and the State of California. If the federal
government, acting through the
Environmental Protection Agency or addi-
tional legislation, or the State should im-
pose stricter treatment standards upon
the Enterprise, its expenses could in-
crease accordingly and rates and charges
would have to be increased to offset
those expenses. It is not possible to pre-
dict the direction which federal or State
regulation will take with respect to water
and wastewater treatment standards.

Secondary Market for Bonds

There can be no guarantee that there will
be a secondary market for the Bonds or, if
a secondary market exists, that any
Bonds can be sold for any particular price.
Occasionally, because of general market
conditions or because of adverse history
or economic prospects connected with a
particular issue, secondary marketing
practices in connection with a particuiar
issue are suspended or terminated.
Additionally, prices of issues for which a
market is being made will depend upon
then-prevailing circumstances. Such
prices could be substantially different from
the original purchase price.

13



14

Operating Revenue Line
Water Sales

Sewer Service Charges
Misc. Services

Recreation Facilities

Total

Operating Expenses
Source of Supply
Reciaimed Water

Pumping Expense
Treatment Plant
Transmission & Distribution.
Collection & Disposal
Recreation. Facilities
General & Administrative
Depreciation & Amortization
Organizational Expense
Total

Operating Income (Loss)
Non-Operating Revenue
Taxes & Assessments
Interest

Gain (Loss) on Sale of Assets
O.C.I.P. Recoveries

Other

TCMWD Distribution

Total Non Operating Revenue
Non-Operating_Expen_se
Irj_terest

Bond Service Fees

Loss On Debt Refunding
Other

Total Non-Operating Expense

Net Non-Operating Income

Net Income

Audited
1999

$7,798,136
5,042,228
481,688
132,514
13,454,566

4,013,031
475,535
368,254

1,465,721
833,106
499,471
109,749

3,675,196

2,467,731
330,168

14,237,962

(783,396)

3,379,984
1,857,370

1,183
5,238,637
1,278,360

51,026

1,329,386
3,909,151

$3,125,755

Table 5
South Coast Water District

Summary of Revenue and Expenses

Audited
2000

$8,072,153
4,760,336
196,894
134,600
13,163,983

4,138,247
495,582
392,531

1,711,806
808,773
476,073
106,125

3,596,050

3,037,433

14,762,620
(1,598,637)

3,692,330
2,585,630
401,539
1,199,899
3,886,052
11,765,450

1,368,536
56,556

1,425,092
10,340,358

$8,741,721

Source: Annual Audited Financial Statements, the District.

Audited
2001

$7,834,193
5,018,432
279,567
143,391
13,275,583

4,124,205
408,203
446,363

2,598,597

1,002,133
480,661
126,501

3,920,006

3,026,438

16,133,107
(2,857,524)

3,423,800
3,991,318
603,581

7323
8,026,022

1,170,664
49,247
618,997
1,838,908
6,187,114

$3,329,590

Unaudited
2002

$8,621,748
5,758,638
300,052
156,847
14,837,185

3,708,845
347,444
368,846

2,910,898
854,339
494,408
122,778

4,449,324

3,140,000

16,396,882
(1,5659,697)

3,081,644
1,453,200
24,803

5,940

4,565,587

1,195,577
68,783

1,264,360
3,301,227

$1,741,530

Budget
2003

$10,716,000 1
6,611,000 2
312,000
174,000 4
17,813,000

3,833,000
617,000
423,000

2,561,000

1,268,000
872,000
126,000

5,647,000

3,012,000

18,359,000
(546,000)

3,259,000
1,327,000
450,000

12,000

5,048,000

1,154,000
60,000

1,214,000
3,834,000

$3.288,000



DISTRICT ORGANIZATION,
OPERATION AND
FINANCIAL INFORMATION

General

The South Coast Water District (the
"District”) was established in 1932 and op-
erates under the provisions of the County
Water District Law, Division 12, Section
30000 et. seq. of the California Water
Code. The District is located in the coastal
area of southern Orange County, approxi-
mately 50 miles south of Los Angeles and
60 miles north of San Diego. The District
is primarily residential in character with
the majority of constituents residing in the
communities known as "South Laguna,”
"Monarch Bay", "Monarch Terrace",
"Monarch Beach", "Niguel Shores", and
"Dana Point". The District serves a small
number of customers in San Juan
Capistrano and in north San Clemente as
well. The customer base is made up of
12,270 water connections and 14,612
wastewater connections. The District also
provides recycled water to 165 customers,
which represents 133.31 million gallons of
recycled water sold per annum.

Organization

Beginning in 1994, the District actively
pursued reorganization with adjacent spe-
cial districts. In June 1997, the District
agreed to detach 431 residential connec-
tions in the communities of Laguna Sur
and Monarch Point to the Moulton Niguel
Water District. The District continues to
provide wastewater collection to these
communities. In June 1998, the District
filed an application for reorganization with
the Local Agency Formation Commission
to dissolve Dana Point Sanitary District
and consolidate it and the Capistrano
Beach Water District and the Laguna
Beach County Water District with South
Coast Water District. In October 1998, the
Orange County Board of Supervisors ap-
proved the dissolution of the Dana Point
Sanitary District and the consolidation of
the Capistrano Beach Water District with
South Coast Water District. The consolida-
tion became effective January 1, 1999.

As part of the terms and conditions of the
consolidation, the District detached the
South Laguna service area to the City of
Laguna Beach, effective July 1, 1999.
Pursuant to an agreement between the
City of Laguna Beach and the District, the
District continues to operate and maintain
the potable water, recycled water and
wastewater collection systems within the
South Laguna community as part of the
South Coast Water service area. The
agreement between the City of Laguna
Beach and the District does allow the City
to assume operation and ownership of ap-
proximately 30% of the remaining shared
assets allocated to or within the South
Laguna Area; however, all debt issued
prior to the time of the City assuming op-
erations and ownership would remain an
obligation of the South Laguna area. The
District contracts with the City of San Juan
Capistrano to provide water service to ap-
proximately 1,000 connections in the east-
ern portion of the City of Dana Point. The
District is also under contract to operate
the Joint Regional Water Supply System,
which provides wholesale water to nine (9)
maijor retail water customers, including the
South Coast Water District.

With this reorganization completed, the
District began its operations as a consoli-
dated district with budgeting and account-
ing being provided for five financial service
areas or financial zones: South Coast
Water, providing both water and sewer,
Dana Point Sewer, Capistrano Beach
Water and Capistrano Beach Sewer. The
boundaries of the South Coast Service
Area ( the "SCSA") is similar to the bound-
aries of the District as existed in 1993
when the 1993 Bonds, which are being re-
funded by the Bonds, were originally is-
sued. However, the security for the Bonds
is the pledge of taxes and revenues col-
lected from the larger, consolidated,
District comprised of all five financial ser-
vice areas or financial zones.

The District was officially reorganized
under a Certificate of Completion issued
by the Executive Officer of the Orange
County Local Agency Formation
Commission, dated December 31, 1998
(the “Consolidation Order”). The terms
and conditions set forth in the
Consolidation Order established five “fi-
nancial zones” covering each of the five
service areas of the former districts, and
required the District to operate and ac-
count for each financial zone as a sepa-
rate accounting unit and maintain the
assets and reserves of each financial zone
for the benefit of the lands and inhabitants
thereof and for satisfying bond obligations
for a minimum of 7 years. Under the

15



Consolidation Order each financial zone
was to remain solely liable for all debts, li-
abilities, and obligations of the agency
from which it was formed.

As required by the Consolidation Order,
the District has maintained separate ac-
counting for the five financial zones for the
current and past three fiscal years. The
goal of the District is to achieve a fully in-
tegrated financial operation for the District
as a whole, and to that end it has also
maintained consolidated accounting
records and has sought to identify the
basis for an equitable and accurate as-
sessment of the financial condition of each
of the respective services areas. In order
to normalize the consolidated District and
avoid the confusion and financial disrup-
tions which have attended the mainte-
nance of separate accounting for the five
financial zones, the District Board has re-
solved to establish an equitably deter-
mined recognition of assets and allocation
of liabilities across the service areas. The
advanced schedule will allow for imple-
mentation of a simplified rate structure re-
flecting consolidated budgeting and
accounting beginning in fiscal year
2003/2004. Although this financial consoli-
dation will be accomplished before the 7-
year period set forth in the Consolidation
Order, the District has discussed this step
with the Executive Officer of the Orange
County Local Agency Formation
Commission, and the District believes the
Commission would not oppose this action.

Under applicable California taw and also
under the Consolidation Order, the consol-
idated District is liable for payment of all
principal, interest, and any other amounts
due on account of the outstanding bonds,
revenue bonds, contracts or obligations of
the prior districts with which it has been
consolidated. For this reason, and also in
anticipation of the financial consolidation
which the District intends to implement,
the Bonds are secured by a pledge of and
lien on the entire Tax Revenues and Net
Revenues from the consolidated District.
In the opinion of Bond Counsel and
District Counsel, the District is permitted to
pledge the entire Tax Revenues and Net
Revenues from its consolidated operation.

Management and Staff

As a result of the District's reorganization,
the governing board of the reorganized
District originally consisted of an eleven
member interim Board. Four Board mem-
bers were from the consolidated
Capistrano Beach Water District, three
from the dissolved Dana Point Sanitary
District and four from the pre-consolidated
South Coast Water District. Since
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November 2000, seven directors are
elected based on geographic voter divi-
sion. Beginning November 2002, the
Board of Directors has reduced again the
size of the Board to five elected directors,
who serve at-large.

The general manager of the District
serves at the pleasure of the Board and is
responsible for the District's administrative
and operational activities. Mr. Michael P.
Dunbar became General Manager of the
District on July 1, 1992. Mr. Dunbar is a
registered civil engineer and served as
Assistant General Manager/Chief
Engineer for the District since 1987.

Approximately 68 full-time employees
serve the district and its areas of contract
operations. There are no formal labor or-
ganizations representing these employ-
ees. All full-time employees of the District
are covered under the Public Employees’
Retirement System (PERS) of the State of
California, a defined benefit plan. All pen-
sion costs are funded by monthly contribu-
tions made by the District.

Summary of Historical Revenues
and Expenses

Table 5 summarizes the District's rev-
enues, expenses and fund balances from
1998/99 through 2000/01 based upon au-
dits of the District and unaudited informa-
tion for 2001/02. A copy of the District's
2000/01 audit is included as Appendix A to
this Official Statement. The annual audit
for 1998/99 was the first audit of the con-
solidated District.

Debt Service Coverage

Table 6 shows the historical debt service
coverage for fiscal years 1998/99 through
2001/02 and projected debt service cover-
age for the current fiscal year using debt
service from the 1993 Bonds.

Water and Wastewater Rates

Water Rates

Water rates are based upon meter size.
This is implemented either through a sep-
arate charge or a minimum consumption
allowance. The separate charge ranges
from $12.00 for a 3/4 inch meter to
$484.32 for a 6 inch meter. This is the bi-
monthly rate. The minimum consumption
rate allowance ranges from 500 cubic
feet for a 3/4 inch meter to 30,000 cubic
feet for a 6 inch meter. In addition, there
is a unit commodity charge of $2.70 per
100 cubic feet of potable water con-
sumed, and a unit commodity charge of
$2 .16 per 100 cubic feet of recycled
water consumed. The District provides
water, recycled water and sewer service
to the area. It also provides recreational
services to the general public on certain
District properties. Table 7 summarizes
growth of water and sanitary system con-
nections from 1999 through 2002.



Gross Revenues

Water Sales

Sewer Service Charges
Misc. Services

Recreation Facilities
Interest

Total

Operations & Maintenance
Source of Supply
Reclaimed Water

Pumping Expense
Treatment Plant
Transmission & Distribution.
Collection & Disposal
Recreation. Facilities
General & Administrative
Organizational Expense
Total

Net Revenues

Tax Revenues

Pledged Revenues

Debt Service

1993 Bonds

Dana Point Revenue Bonds
Capistrano Water COPs
Capistrano Wastewater COPs
Total

Coverage Ratio

Audited
1999

$7,798,136
5,042,228
481,688
132,514
1,729,188
15,183,754

4,013,031
475535
368,254

1,465,721
833,106
499,471
109,749

3,675,196
330,168

11,770,231

3413523

1,042,388

$5,355,911

318,130
202,435
205,401
71,054
$797,020
6‘7-2 X

Table 6

South Coast Water District
Debt Service Coverage

Audited
2000

$8072,153

4,760,336

196,894

134,600

2,452,255

15,616,238

4,138,247

495582

Audited
2001

© $7.834.193
5,018.432
279567
143.391
3791281
17.066.864

4,124 205
408,203
446,363

1,711,806

808773

476,0;13

106,125

3,596,050
11,725,187

3,891,051

2,322,330

$6,213,381

319,080

2,598,597
1.002,133
480.661
126.501
3,920.006

13,106.669
3.960.195
2,634,517

$6.594,712

319,520

198,160
410,803
142,108
$1,070,151
 581x

Source: Annual Audited Financial Statements, the District.

198,885
568,163
151,943
$1,238,511
5.32 x

Unaudited
2002

$8.621,748
5,758,538
300,052
156,847
1,347,732
16,184 917

3,708,845
347,444
368,846

2,910,898
854,339
494,408
122,778

4,449,324

13,256.882
2,928,035
2,187,519

$5,115,554

319,620
199,375
567,635
151,603
$1,238.233
413 x

Budget
2003

$10,716,0
6,611,000
312,000
174,000
1,267,000
19,080,000

3,833,000
617,000
423,000

2,561,000

1,268,000
872,000
126,000

5,647,000

15,347,000
3,733,000
2,539,000

$6,272,000

319,370
199,660
571,598
151,248
$1.241,876
5.05 x

17



Table 7
Growth of Water and Sanitary
System Connections

Year Water Sanitary

Connections Connections
1999 11,807 14,447
2000 11,939 14,046
2001 11,968 14,067
2002 12,270 14,108

Source: The District.

Table 8
South Coast Water District
Top Ten Water Customers in 2001/02

Customer Water Sales %T(1)
The Links at Monarch Beach $264,770 3.1%
County of Orange 174,715 2.0%
Niguel Shores Community Association 149,238 1.7%
St. Regis Hotel 144,983 1.7%
Niguel Beach Terrace 134,736 1.6%
Ritz Carlton 117,511 1.4%
Seascape Homeowners Association 94,381 1.1%
State of California 93,706 1.1%
Ménarch Hills Condo Association 85,634 1.0%
City of Dana Point 77.849 0.9%

Total $1,337,523 15.5%

1. Based on total sales of § 8,621,748.
Source: The District.



Wastewater Rates

Residential rates (whether a single-family
unit, a multiple dwelling unit, or a mobile
home) by service area are: South Coast
$33.00 per month, Dana Point $18.00 per
month and Capistrano Beach $40.00 (sin-
gle family) / $39.00 (2 to 3 connections) /
$36.00 (5 or more connections) per
month. Special rates apply to hotels and
motels, office buildings, schools, church-
es, markets, restaurants, laundries, hospi-
tals and other special businesses.

Billing Procedure

The District bills water charges on a bi-
monthly bill for all service areas. The bills
must be paid within 25 days from the
billing date, or a 10% collection charge is
added. If bills are not paid by the 53th day
after the billing date, water service is dis-
continued. After a delinquent bill is paid in
full, service is restored. The district applies
a reconnection charge ranging from
$25(business hours)to $50 (after hours),
depending upon specific circumstances.
Sewer Service charges for all service
areas are billed via the property tax state-
ments. Exceptions to this method include
certain commercial accounts in the CBSA
that have their minimum annual usage
billed on the property tax statements and
those charges based on flow being billed
on a bimonthly basis. In the Dana Point
Service Area the exception is the Dana
Point Harbor which receives a monthly
billing based on square footage and land
use and in the SCSA those commercial
accounts that are billed based on flow re-
ceive a monthly bill.

Table 8 shows the ten largest water users
and the ten largest sanitary customers for
2001/02 in the District in terms of dollar
amounts billed

Ad Valorem Property Taxes

The District receives a portion of its rev-
enue from property taxes, which are de-
fined to be the “Tax Revenues” which
secure the Bonds. In California, property
that is subject to ad valorem taxes is clas-
sified as "secured" or "unsecured”. The
secured classification includes property on
which any property tax levied becomes a
lien on that property. A tax levied on unse-
cured property does not become a lien
against the taxed unsecured property, but
may become a lien on certain other prop-
erty owned by the taxpayer. Every tax that
becomes a lien on secured property has
priority over all other liens, arising pur-
suant to State law, on the secured proper-
ty, regardless of the time of the creation of
the other liens.

Table 9 summarizes District assessed val-
uation growth from 1998/99 through
2002/03 and Table 10 shows the secured
assessed valuations for 2002/03 of the
twenty largest holdings in the District. The
District expects one major project, the
Treasure Island Resort Development, to
come onto the tax rolls during the next
year. This development, renamed,
Montage, will consist of 265 hotel rooms
with several restaurants. In addition, the
development will include 27 luxuries,
multi-bedroom condominiums.

Secured and unsecured property is en-
tered on separate parts of the assessment
roll maintained by the county assessor.
The method of collecting delinquent taxes
is substantially different for the two classi-
fications of property. The taxing authority
has four ways of collecting unsecured per-
sonal property taxes: (1) a civil action
against the taxpayer; (2) filing a certificate
in the office of the county clerk specifying
certain facts in order to obtain a judgment
lien on certain property of the taxpayer;
(3) filing a certificate of delinquency for
record in the county recorder's office, in
order to obtain a lien on certain property
of the taxpayer; and (4) seizure and sale
of personal property, improvements or
possessory interests belonging or as-
sessed to the assessee. The exclusive
means of enforcing the payment of delin-
quent taxes in respect of property on the
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secured roll, is the sale of the property se-
curing the taxes to the State for the
amount of taxes that are delinquent.

A 10% penalty is added to delinquent
taxes that have been levied in respect of
property on the secured roll. In addition,
property on the secured roll with respect to
which taxes are delinquent is sold to the
State on or about June 30 of the fiscal
year. Such property may thereafter be re-
deemed by payment of the delinquent
taxes and a delinquency penalty, plus a
redemption penalty of 1-1/2% per month
to the time of redemption. If taxes are un-
paid for a period of five years or more, the
property is deeded to the State and then is
subject to sale by the county tax collector.
A 10% penalty also attaches to delinquent
taxes with respect to property on the unse-
cured roll, and further, an additional penal-
ty of 1-1/2% per month accrues with
respect to such taxes beginning the first
day of the third month following the delin-
quency date.

The valuation of property is determined as
of January 1 each year and installments of
taxes levied upon secured property be-
come delinquent on the following
December 10 and April 10. Taxes on unse-
cured property are due when billed and
become delinquent August 31, and such
taxes are levied at the prior fiscal year's
secured tax rate.

Legislation enacted in 1983, SB 813, pro-
vides for the supplemental assessment
and taxation of property as of the occur-
rence of a change of ownership or com-
pletion of new construction. Previously,
statutes enabled the reassessment with
respect to such changes only as of the
next January 1 tax lien date following

the change.

Collection of taxes based on supplemental
assessments occurs throughout the year.
Taxes due are prorated according to the
amount of time remaining in the tax year,
with the exception of tax bills dated March
1 through May 31, which will be calculated
on the basis of the remainder of the cur-
rent fiscal year and the full twelve months
of the next fiscal year.

Taxes on the supplemental bill are due on
the date mailed and become delinquent as
follows: (a) If the bill is mailed during the
months of July through October, the first
installment becomes delinquent at 5 p.m.
on December 10 of the same year. The
second installment becomes delinquent at
5 p.m. on April 10 of the next year; and (b)
If the bill is mailed during the months of
November through June, the first install-
ment becomes delinquent at 5 p.m. on the
last day of the month following the month
in which the bill was mailed. The second
installment becomes delinquent at 5 p.m.
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on the last day of the fourth calendar
month following the date the first install-
ment would have become delinquent.

If the taxes due are not paid on or before
the date and time they become delin-
quent, a penalty of 10 percent is added.

Water Supply

All of the millions of gallons of water
needed to supply the District come from
the Colorado River and from Northern
California. Water from these two sources
is treated, filtered and blended for distrib-
ution to southern Orange County. The
District purchases this water from the
Metropolitan Water District through the
wholesale agency of Municipal Water
District of Orange County.

Water purchased from these agencies is
carried into the distribution network
through several large transmission mains.
Due to the District's hilly terrain, much of
the water must be pumped and stored in
reservoirs to maintain constant pressure.
The District's total water storage capacity
of approximately 40.9 million gallons is
maintained in 15 reservoirs. Water is
moved to upper elevations through ap-
proximately 147 miles of local mains
using a system of 9 pump stations.

As an additional safeguard to assure the
water supply, the District maintains a se-
ries of "interconnections” with neighboring
water districts which can be activated in
an emergency.

The District is planning on rehabilitating
several of its reservoirs over the next two
years. This will complete the interior re-
placement costing of all of its reservoirs.
These are estimated to cost $850,000.
The District will be sharing in several
point projects with the City of San Juan
Capistrano. One is a groundwater recov-
ery project, estimated at $5,000,000. The
other is a 4.0 million gallon reservoir of
which the District will own 2.0 million gal-
lons of capacity. This project is estimated
to cost $2,500,000.

Water Quality

The Environmental Protection Agency
(EPA) and the California Department of
Health Services (DHS) are the agencies
responsible for establishing drinking
water quality standards. To ensure that
tap water is safe to drink, EPA and DHS
prescribe regulations that limit the amount

of certain contaminants in water provided
by public water systems. The District vigi-
lantly safeguards its water supply and the
water delivered to its customers meets
the standards required by the state and
federal regulatory agencies. In some
cases, the District goes beyond what is
required to monitor for additional contami-
nants that have known health risks.

Water Security

As part of its normal operating proce-
dures, the District has routinely monitored
its reservoirs and sample stations and has
conducted frequent water sampling and
quality testing. In the aftermath of the
September 11th terrorist attack and the
growing concerns regarding security and
the potential threat of contamination, the
District has added additional security
measures to those already in existence.
These include the coordination with local
law enforcement for the increased moni-
toring of District facilities and the coordi-
nation of emergency procedures with
other regional water agencies.

Wastewater Facilities

South Coast Water District collects and
pumps wastewater through miles of sewer
mains using a series of "lift stations.”
Collected wastewater is pumped to one of
two treatment plants. The Coastal
Treatment Plant is located in Aliso
Canyon and treats wastewater collected
from the northern part of the District. The
JP Latham Treatment Plant is located by
the mouth of the San Juan Creek and
treats wastewater collected from the
southern part of the District.

The District is planning to rehabilitate sev-



eral sewer lift stations and force mains
over the next several years with an esti-
mated cost of over $2,000,000. In addi-
tion, the District is planning to rehabilitate
its tunneled sewer pipeline at an estimat-
ed cost of $5,100,000.

These plants are owned and operated by
the South Orange County Wastewater
Authority (SOCWA). The District is a
member of this agency.

Direct and Overlapping Debt

Table 11 shows a statement of direct and
overlapping debt of the District. The ratios
are based upon 2002/03 assessed valua-
tions of the respective taxing jurisdictions,
and outstanding debt is calculated as of
April 1, 2003. For the purposes of this
table, the 1993 Bonds are assumed to be
outstanding.

The ratio of direct debt to assessed valu-
ation equals 0.10% and the ratio of direct
and overlapping debt to assessed value
equals 0.53%. Per capita direct debt is $
177 per capita while direct and overlap-
ping debt is $ 268 and per capita based
on an assessed valuation of $
6,806,050,627 and an estimated popula-
tion of the service area of 40,000.

Government Spending Limitation

On November 6, 1979, the California vot-
ers, by initiative, approved a constitutional
amendment that added Article XIIiB enti-
tled "Government Spending Limitation"

to the California Constitution. The initia-
tive was commonly known as the

"Gann Initiative".

Article XI1IB imposes an annual "appropri-
ations limit" upon the State and each
local government. The appropriations limit
restricts spending of certain moneys that
are "appropriations subject to limitations".
"Appropriations subject to limitations™ in-
clude the "proceeds of taxes" levied by or
for the State or the local government. The
"appropriations limit” is based on certain
expenditures in fiscal year 1978/79 ad-
justed annually to reflect changes in the
consumer price index and population of
the local government.

The California Legislature has adopted
several statutes in implementation of
Article X|1IB, including Chapter 1205,
Statutes of 1980, which contains proce-
dures for a local government to establish
an "appropriations limit® for a given fiscal
year. Chapter 1205 also contains a limita-
tion upon the period within which any per-
son may commence an action attacking
the “appropriations limit" so established.
Pursuant to the authorizations contained
in Chapter 1205, the District adopted a
resolution establishing an appropriations
limit for the fiscal year 2002/03 of

$24,625,572. Based upon the 2002/03
budget, the limit is satisfied by more than
$24,147,500. The period for the com-
mencement of any action attacking the
appropriations limit (60 days) established
by the Board has expired.

Investment Policy

The District is required to comply with
Government Code Section 53600 et seq.
and in doing so has established an invest-
ment policy that states its three primary
goals: 1) To assure compliance with all
Federal, State and Local laws governing
the investment of monies, 2) To protect
the principal monies entrusted to the orga-
nization and 3) To generate the maximum
amount of investment income within the
parameters of the Statement of
Investment Policy. The primary objectives
of the policy are to provide safety, liquidity,
yield, and market-average rates of return.
The District's Statement of Investment
Policy for Fiscal Year 2002/2003 was ap-
proved by the Board of Directors in
August 2002.
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Table 9

South Coast Water District
Assessed Valuations

Local

Secured

1998-99 $4,479,705,271
1999-00 5,016,655,752
2000-01 5,399,518,238
2001-02 6,060,552,386
2002-03 6,581,857,254

Source: The District.

Property Owner

CPH Monarch Golf, Hotel, Beach and Resort / -

CPH Dana Point

SHC Laguna Niguel 1 LLC

Lloyds Bank California

Five Star Resort LLC

Headlands Reserve LLC

Connecticut General Life Insurance Co.
Residential Realty Fund

Felcor Suites Ltd.

Theresa C. Morrison/William J. Cagney Trust
Stoneridge Investors Ltd.

ST Apartments

Mariner Drive Apartments LLC

Roy K. Sakioka

Duane R. Roberts

Steven F. Udvar-Hazy

Aliso Creek Shopping Center Inc.
James R. Mellor

Mary Silver

Fountain Senior Properties of California
SND LP

Utility Unsecured

$3,286,870 $195,518,935

3,455,484 190,864,361

3,499,320 184,081,691

3,541,347 202,972,213

3,329,184 220,864,189
Table 10

South Coast Water District
Top 20 Secured Taxpayers, 2002-03

2002-03
Primary Land Use

Golf Resort
Hotel
Residentiai Properties
Mobile Home Park
Vacant Coastal Properties
Hotel
Residential Properties
Hotel
Shopping Center
Apartments
Apartments
Apartments
Commercial Buildings
Residential
Residentialr
Shopping Center
Residential
Residential
Assisted Living

Commercial

(1) 2002-03 Local Secured Assessed Valuation: $6,581,857,254

Source: California Municipal Statistics

Total
$4,678,511,076
5,210,975,597
5,587,099,249
6.258,065,946
6,806,050,627

Assessed Valuation

$336,706,306
193,646,762
147,538,390
76,524,544
64,657,157
37,496,721
20,902,190
18,347,177
14,893,728
14,280,000
11,313,960
10,545,855
10,171,249
9,742,583
9,186,275
9,028,101
8,808,019
8,621,699
8,521,145
8,394,251
$1,019,326,112

Percentage
Change

11.38%
7.22%
12.01%
8.76%

% of
Total (1)

5.12%
294
224
1.16
0.98
0.57
0.32
0.28
0.23
0.22
0.17
0.16
0.15
0.15
0.14
0.14
0.13
0.13
0.13
0.13

15.49%



INFORMATION REGARDING THE
LOCAL ECONOMY

The following information regarding the
District and the surrounding area is pre-
sented as general background data. The
Bonds are payable solely from the
sources described herein (see "SECURI-
TY FOR THE BONDS").

Location

The South Coast Water District is located
along the coast of the Pacific Ocean in
southern Orange County, approximately
50 miles south of downtown Los Angeles
and approximately 60 miles north of San
Diego. State Highway | and State
Highway 133, which connects to the
Santa Ana and San Diego Freeways, pro-
vide District residents convenient access
to major employment centers in Orange,
Los Angeles, and San Diego Counties.
Driving time to the Cities of Santa Ana,
Newport Beach, Costa Mesa, Anaheim
and Fullerton averages approximately

45 minutes.

The John Wayne Airport, 15 miles from
the District, provides domestic air travel by
more than ten carriers and serves approx-
imately 8.4 million passengers annually An
extensive $300 million expansion was
completed in 1990 and the airport now ac-
commodates over seventy-three daily de-
partures by the major airlines. Metrolink
interurban train service carries passen-
gers to six counties in Southern California.
The eighty-seven mile section between
San Diego County and downtown Los
Angeles, serving Orange County, is the
fastest growing route on the system.

Economic Base

Employment Trends

Growth within the District and its vicinity
has been generated in the main by the
continuing urbanization and economic de-
velopment of Orange County. Starting in
the early 1950's, the County's economy,
once agriculturally oriented, began a sus-

tained period of steady economic growth
and diversification. Initially the County's
manufacturing base centered in highly
technical and specialized defense-oriented
industries; however, in recent years, sub-
stantial expansion has taken place in civil-
ian-oriented industries such as medical
research and manufacturing, machinery,
metals, rubber and plastics, paper prod-
ucts, and electronics. This has helped the
County to evolve into an important diversi-
fied manufacturing center that serves re-
gional, national and intemational markets.
Table 12 shows the average annual labor
force and unemployment level over the
period 1995 through 2002. The seasonally
unadjusted unemployment rate for Orange
County was 2.5% in 2000, 3.2% in 2001
and 3.7% in 2002.

However, these rates are consistently well
below the respective unemployment rates
for California as a whole. According to the
State Employment Development
Department, while the unemployment rate
as of December 2002 was an estimated
3.7% for Orange County (third lowest
County in the State) versus 5.8% for Los
Angeles County, 5.7% for Riverside
County, 5.1% for San Bemardino County,
4.0% for San Diego County and 6.3% for
entire State of Califomia. Moreover, the
unemployment rate for Orange County is
pushed upward by cities such as Anaheim
and Santa Ana. Cities in and around the
District have consistently lower unemploy-
ment rates than the County average:
Dana Point, 2.4%; Laguna Beach, 1.1%;
Laguna Niguel, 1.8%, all as of December
2002 and all seasonally unadjusted.

Table 13 presents the current distribution
of employment by industry prepared by
the State of California’s Employment
Development Department. The distribution
of wage and salary employment for 2001
indicates that over 16 percent of all wage
and salary workers are in manufacturing,
31 percent in the services, 24 percent in
wholesale and retail trade, 11 percent in
government and 8 percent in finance, in-
surance and real estate.

Between 1995 and 2000 wage and salary
workers grew by 21%. Most of these job
gains were in the financial, insurance and

real-estate sector with 26% growth fol-
lowed by the service sector with 24%
growth. Manufacturing, which had
been losing jobs in the early 1990s,
has rebounded and has grown by 14%
since 1995.

Largest District Employers

The Ritz-Carlton Resort, situated in Dana
point, opened a 393-resort hotel in the
District in August 1984 on a 17.5-acre site
located between State Highway 1 and the
Pacific Ocean. The hotel includes three
dining rooms and nine meeting and ban-
quet rooms, which can accommodate
groups up to 600 persons. Guest ameni-
ties include approximately two miles of
sandy beach, swimming and tennis facili-
ties, access to an 18-hole golf course, and
a fitness center. The facility has earned
the AAA 5-Diamond award. The Ritz-
Carlton group maintains luxury hotels in
20 cities in the United Sates as well as
several locations world wide.

The Ritz Carlton, Dana Point, was devel-
oped at a cost of more then $100 million.
The facility employs approximately 800
persons and has an annual payroll in ex-
cess of $15 million. Since its opening the
hotel has had a high occupancy rate, and
daily rates range from $188 to $2,000.
The hotel pays the District approximately
$31,000 per month for water and waste-
water service. The hotel has a 2002/03 as-
sessed valuation of $193,646,762.

In June 2001, the St. Regis Resort, Dana
Point, opened a 400-room resort hotel that
is situated on 172 acres overlooking the
Pacific Ocean in the District. The hotel in-
cludes several dining options in its seven
restaurants and lounges, 30,000 sq. ft.

of indoor meeting space which includes: 2
ballrooms and 10 meeting rooms, 60,000
sq. ft. of outdoor meeting space and a full
service business center. Guest amenities
include an 18-hole oceanfront champi-
onship golf course, landscaped nature
trails leading to a 6.1-acre pristine beach
and exclusive access to a private beach
club, a tennis club with 6 hard and lighted
2 clay courts, a luxury spa, three swim-
ming pools, a fitness center with an
on-site trainer and a Kids Club. The St.
Regis Hotel has earned the AAA 5-
Diamond rating.

The St. Regis Resort was developed at a
cost of more than $240 million. The facility
employees approximately 970 persons
and has an annual payroll in excess of
$30 million. The hotels daily rates range
from $375 to $5,500.
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The hotel pays the District approximately
$29,000 per month for water and waste-
water services. The hotel has a 2002-03
assessed valuation of $325,965,177.
South Coast Medical Center, the second
largest employer in the South Coast area,
is located on the Coast Highway in
Laguna Beach. It is served by a staff of
about 350 physicians and surgeons who
practice in the area, and employs on a full
or part time basis approximately 600 peo-
ple. Erected as a community owned enter-
prise on a 22 acre site in 1959, it has
been expanded from a 75 bed facility to a
present licensed capacity of 268 beds,
representing a replacement value in ex-
cess of $65 million. In addition to acute
general care, the hospital also offers
around-the-clock emergency and outpa-
tient services.

As the District is primarily residential,
other employers are relatively small retail
enterprises and professional offices. The
main employment base for District resi-
dents is in Orange County and Los
Angeles County.

Largest County Employers

Orange County is home to several Fortune
500 companies. Major publicly traded em-
ployers with headquarters in Orange
County include such diversified firms as
Rockwell, Fluor Corporation, Bergen
Brunswig, FHP International and Western
Digital. The Walt Disney Company in cen-
tral Orange County employs approximately
12,200 employees. Other companies with
at least 3,000 local employees include St.
Joseph Health System, PepsiCo, Ralphs
Grocery Company, Pacific Telesis, Dayton-
Hudson, Marriott, Toshiba and Knott's
Berry Farm.

Land Use, Property Valuation and
Recent Construction Activity

The District is principally residential in
character with most residents living in the
communities of South Laguna, Three Arch
Bay, Monarch Bay, Monarch Terrace,
Niguel Shores, and a portion of the Dana
Point area. These communities are now all
included in the Cities of Laguna Beach
and Dana Point. Dana Point incorporated
in 1989, and the City of Laguna Beach an-
nexed the community of South Laguna in
1999.

The District continues to experience eco-
nomic growth. Development of the Dana
Point Headlands is proceeding with plan
review by the City of Dana Point.
Opening in February 2003, the Montage
Resort & Spa will feature 262 guest
rooms, 37 beach bungalow-style rooms
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and 28 private residences. Situated on
30-lushly landscaped acres the resort fea-
tures three restaurants, a 20,000-square-
foot indoor/outdoor oceanfront spa, a
full-service salon, a lap pool, a fitness
room, a yoga/aerobics studio and spa
boutique.

The Montage guest amenities include four
white sand beaches, 30 acres of lush
landscaping, a park overlooking the
Pacific Ocean, three swimming pools and
14,500 sq. ft. of indoor meeting space
which includes: two dividable ballrooms,
three meeting rooms and four outdoor
function lawns.

The facility will employ approximately 550
full and part-time persons. The hotel has
a mid-construction 2002-03 assessed val-
uation of $76,524,544.

Table 9, on page 11 of this Official
Statement, shows a five year history of
growth in assessed value in the District.
Assessed value in the District has consis-
tently grown faster than that of the County.
Significant new investment is taking place
in Orange County, a large portion of which
is associated with the Tourism industry.
Disney is expanding its holdings with the
centerpiece being a new $1.4 billion, 55
acre theme park called Disney's California
Adventure. The theme park and related
hotel complex, which wil be adjacent to
Disneyland, are expected to generate an
estimated 5,000 new local jobs. A $150
million expansion of the Anaheim
Convention Center, already the 6th largest
in the country, is commencing construc-
tion. The current plan calls for increasing
the center’s size by 40% to 1.4 million
square feet.

Population

Current District population is estimated at
40,000 and is not anticipated to grow by
any significant amount. Data obtained for
the City of Laguna Beach indicates a

2000 population of 25,300 representing
9.2% growth since 1990. Data for the
newly incorporated City of Dana Point
shows a 2000 population of 38,800 repre-
senting 19.1% growth since 1990. As dis-
cussed earlier, the District serves portions
all of Dana Point and part of Laguna
Beach. The District service area was ini-
tially determined by the geographic char-
acteristics of the area and the economics
of providing water and sanitary service.
Approximately 65% of County households
own the residence they live in, 20% re-
side in apartments and 15% rent single-
family homes. There are approximately
820,000 households in the County.

As the District is located on the coast,
housing values are greater than values
for similar sized structures in inland areas
of the County. No specific demographic
data has been compiled for the District,
but housing values and income levels are
well in excess of the median figures.

Community Amenities

Residents of Orange County are offered
an excellent quality of life with numerous
recreational amenities and major metro-
politan cultural centers, as well as the
nearby mountains, desert, ocean, 42
miles of beautiful beaches and a temper-
ate year round climate. Numerous tourist
attractions, including Disneyland and
Knott's Berry Farm, draw 40 million visi-
tors each year. Professional sports teams
include Major League Baseball's Anaheim
Angels and the National Hockey League's
Anaheim Mighty Ducks. The Performing
Arts Center complex offers opera, ballet
and symphonies of international stature.



Table 11

SOUTH COAST WATER DISTRICT

Statement of Direct and Overiapping Debt

2002-03 Assessed Valuation: $6,806,050,627
Orange County Teeter Plan Obligations R
Metropolitan Water District B
Capistrano Unified School District School Facilities Improygﬂepigiitfict No. 1
Laguna Beach Unified School District
South Coast Water District
City of Laguna Beach
City 1915 Act Bonds
Orange County Assessment District No. 94-1 o
TOTAL DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING TAX AND ASSESSMENT DEBT
OVERLAPPING GENERAL FUND OBLIGATION DEBT: i
Orange County General Fund Obligations

Orange County Pension Obligations

Orange County Board of Equcation Certificates of Particibation

Orange County Transit District Authority -
Municipal Water District of Orange County Water Facilities gl_'poratiorr;r )

South Orange County Community College District Certificates of Pani—cipation
Capistrano Unified School District Certificates of Participatép

City of Laguna Beach General Fund Obligations B
City of San Clemente Certificates of Participation o ‘
Capistrano Bay Park and Recreation District Certificates orrfiPanicipation
Dana Point Sanitary District General Fund Obligations
Moulton-Niguel Water District Certificates of Participation: 77
South Coast Water District General Fund Obligations
Orange County Fire Authority S B
TOTAL GROSS OVERLAPPING GENERAL FUND OBLIGATION DEBT
Less: Orangé County Transit District Auihority (80% self-supporting)
MWDOC Water Faqilrities”Corpqration ( 100°/orsetf-supporting)m
TOTAL NET OVERLAPPING GENERAL FUND OBLIGATION DEBT
GROSS COMBINED TOTAL DEBT -
NET COMBINED TOTAL DEBT

(1) Excludes refunding issue to be sold.

(2) Excludes tax and revenue anticipation notes, enterprise revenue, mortgage revenue and tax allocation

bonds and non-bonded capital lease obligations.

Ratios to 2002-03 Assessed Valuation:
Direct Debt ($7,065,000)0.10%

Combined Direct Debt ($10,710,000) 0.16%
Total Direct and Overlapping Tax and Assessment Debt 0.53%
Gross Combined Total Debt 1.31%

Net Combined Total Debt 1.28%

Source: California Municipal Statistics.

Debt 4/1/03

2.802
0.602
19.311
19.25
100
24073
3.642
15.947

2.802
2.802
2.802
2.802
3.401
6.947
13.797
24.073
2.909
78.861
85.756
1.972
100
5.501

$3,486,389
3,616,545
12,521,239
4,085,813
7,065,000
2,864,687
1,034,596
1,141,008
$35,815,277

$27.621,387
3,384,045
560,400
173,024
1,628,569
3,035,144
5,753,349
696,913
97,015
3,032,205
1,496,442
714,559
3,645,000 (1)
1,394,504
$53,232,556
138,419
1,628,569
$51,465,568
$89,047,833 (2)
$87,280,845
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Year and
Areas

1995

Orange County
California
United States
1996

Orange County
California
United States
1997

Orange County
California
United States
1998

Orange County
California
United States
1999

Orange County
California
United States
2000

Orange County
California
United States
2001

Orange County
California
United States
2002

Orange County
California
United States

Table 12
Labor Force, Employment and Unemployment
Annual Averages
1995 Through 2002

Civilian Labor Unemployment
Force Employment Unemployment Rate
1,331,040 1,263,340 67,700 5.1%
15,412,210 14,202,850 1,209,360 7.8%
132,301,080 124,899,670 7,401,410 5.6%
1,344,890 1,289,740 55,150 4.1%
15,568,620 14,444 380 1,124,240 7.2%
133,943,330 126,707,500 7,235,830 54%
1,373,730 1,328,380 45,350 3.3%
15,971,800 14,965,530 1,006,270 6.3%
136,296,830 129,557,920 6,738,910 4.9%
1,481,800 1,439,800 42,000 2.8%
16,588,100 15,712,000 876,100 5.3%
137,673,000 131,463,000 6,210,000 4.5%
1,508,400 1,465,406 43,000 2.9%
16,588,300 15,726,300 861,900 5.2%
139,368,000 133,488,000 5,880,000 42%
1513,000 1474600 38,400 2.5%
17,090,800 16,245,000 845,200 4.9%
140,863,000 135,208,000 5,655,000 4.0%
1,548,600 1,498,800 7 49,800 3.2%
17,444,200 7 16,434,600 1,009,600 5.8%
141,912,000 134,235,000 7,677,000 5.4%
1,559,700 1,502,100 57600 3.7%
17,564,500 16,4 072,000 1,162,500 6.3%
142,298,000 134,232,000 8,066,000 5.7%

Source: Employment Development Department, State of California.



Table 13

Wage and Salary Employment by Industry

Orange County
(in thousands)

Employment Type 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001
Agriculture 6.7 6.9 6.6 74 7.6 71
Mining 0.9 09 0.9 07 0.6 0.6
Construction 525 58.1 65.5 734 776 804
Manufacturing 211.2 2224 2317 2289 230.5 2252
Transportation 42.8 444 46.3 48.1 509 52.3
Trade 298.6 309.9 3225 3316 339.7 3489
FIRE 86.9 92.9 100.4 105.2 105.8 111.8
Services 361.7 372.2 3956 4158 4371 4483
Government 129.7 132.7 136.4 141.4 146.6 150.9
Total 1,191.0 1,2404 1,305.9 1,352.5 1,396.4 1,4255
% Growth 41% 5.3% 3.6% 32% 21%

Source: Employment Development Department. State of California.
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Wastewater is given tertiary treatment at the District's Advanced Water Treatment facility prior to use for irrigation
and other non-domestic purposes.

Overhead view off the Coastal Treatment Plant and Advanced Water Treatment Facility.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

§

The Board of Directorsof the
Independent Auditors’ Report 1 South Coast Water District
TLaguna Beach, Caitforma

Financial Statements:

We have audited the financial statements of South Coast Water Distnct (District). as of and

Comparative Balance Sheels 3 - &
for the year ended Jure 30, 2001. as hsted 1n the foregoing table of contents These financial

Comparative Staternents o income and Ketained Earmings 3 statements are the responsibility of the District’s management. Our responsibilitv: 1 to
express an opwiior: on these financial statanents based on our audit. The financial statements

Comparative Statements of Cash Flows b of the District as of June 30, 2000, were audited by other auditors whose report dated
March Y, 2001, expressed an ungualified opinion on those statements

Notes ta Financial Statements 7

We conducted our audit in actordance with generallv accepted audiing standards in the
United States and the State Controller's Minimum Audit Requirements for California Special

Ind. d itors’ C Re t py
b Auditor il € Repor Districts. Those standards require that we plan and pertorm the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of matenal misstatemnent  An audit
inciudes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the coveral! financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable twasis for our
opiuon
In our opinion, the 2001 fmancial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the District as of june 20. 2001. and results of its operations
and 1ts cash flows for the vear then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles in the United States
As discussed in Note 1 of the financial statements, the District changed 1n 2001 its method of
accounting and financial reporting for non-cxchange transactions to conform to
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No 33
Lepiiosi, Coipn § Lotsem, t2p
w ) : ,
Costa Mesa, California
March20,2002
Tell Free Td (B77) B62-2200 Toll Free Fax_ B6G) 136-092"
Bay Arvs. Oremge Commty Smcrmm—
111 Beraareer smec 2% S0 aurw ey Aveme 77 Cormpes Compmons R Some 20
Oakdand. Caldormes 94607 (o Mem. Canormns § 2626 Secrammemo. Caldorma 95818
South Coast Water District South Coast Water District
Comparative Balance Sheets Comparative Balance Sheets
June 30, 2001 and 2000 June 30, 2001 and 2000
200 00 2001 2000
ASSETS
Usitity plant LIABILITIES AND
Capacity right s 25.853,662 3 20,176 99 DISTRICT EQUITY
Land and land ngits 731053 742374 Loog-term Lisbilitres:
Source of supply 2083955 2904759 Bonds and loans payable (Note 3) S TASTI2 5 68
Pumpmg plant 4.219.903 3:969.660 Capital ewse obligation (Nate 6) Hes 12154
Treatment plants 14.420.09 14.420,098 c tescf parsicapation (Nowed) 114300608 150
Transmission and distribution 23358.625 21908674 ""“; ¥ : e oad o A28
Sewer collecuan system 1649969 Assets held usder trust(X obe 8) 8547325 3.798.105
General plant 5127552 5152852 Total long term tiabititles 37.300.008 29927861
Recreation faclices L147.154 1147154 i . .
Constructon in progress 2370.41 1953,750 Liabaities payable from restricled asets:
prpyr—y 06266757 Curvent portion of bonds and koans peyable (ote3) s L0159 H 104 590
Lessaccumulszad depration and amerzaton (20575 917) (36.992.099) Current portionof certificates of partacgpetion {Note 4) 175.000 170,000
Net atllity plarnt TS0 I3 Bond umerest pevable .4 67,165
Total Liabilities payable from restricted assets L3UTe 1252.06%
Restricted assets:
Investments (Note 2} s 20.19%.351 s 8742521 Carrent Habitities:
Cash and investments with hscal agent (Note 21 11372180 20259 Accounts payable and accrued babilices 289,691 1977473
Taxesand interest recesvable 1.197.384 1.015.498 Oepouts EZ1 61,495
Bund resevefund (Note2) 360.08” 33450 Caprial lense obligations (Note 6) 46.062 52008
Total restricted assets 22120002 21.295.203 Advuncesf or conszruction 1258 20412
Currene aseers: Total current liabilities 2975753 2,061478
Operations: Total Habilith 41590527 241408
Investments (Note 2) 2021907 20,606,347 o abtlitles . R
Cash (Note 2} 97103 387490 ) )
Board-desgruted Distrit Eaquity:
Investments (Note 2) 9,205.33 2,990,008 Covtnbuted utility plant (Note 5) 30,622,025 30.162979
Accounts receivable:
Water and sarutation castomers. 440 8547 Remired cornngs (Note 12)
Other agencies 22763 49,951 Investment m uskity plant 2378423 197757
Oxher 29.718 37439 Desegraled for bond untevest and redempbon (Note 31 2.432.229 2576793
Tones and interest recesvable 1320261 252008 Undes grated CO78069 “I19.Mb
Mawnal and supply inventory 230677 216.090 ——— ———
Prepaidexperses 60.578 109.412 Tow! reased samings 70.588.721 66,519.986
Total curem amens 1760480 33472499 Total diami equity 101.510.746 906K 565
Other Totallisbilittes and district equity S 143101273 S 120923968
ot ——m— E———
Captal morovernent deposits and other aseets 1665 668 1.484,008
Assets held under trust (Note 8) 854732 3.798,105 (Conclixded)
Totad other assety 10,212,993 5,282,203
Totalamets $ 1010127 3 129923.968
(Contimued)
See viNg fokes & Financial See rotes to financial




South Coast Water District
Comparative Statements of Income and Retained Eamnings
For the vears ended June 30, 2001 and 2000

2001 2000
OPERATING REVENUES:
Water sales s 83419 s 8072153
Sewer service charges 501432 476033
Miscelianeuus seTvies 279,560 196894
Recreation (aaihbes 143.35) 134,600
Total operaling revenues 33,275 583 13.163.963
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Sourve or supply 1124205 4138247
Redsuned water 408203 ;;); 582
2 446363 531
Pumpmgeperse
Ym-m\:\l plant 2,58597 1711806
Transmissionand distnibution lml'!]] 6808773
Collechonand dispasal 480.56) 476073
Recrestionfaclites 126.501 106,125
Genernland adnuustratrve 3920000 3,59.050
Depreciabon ard amortzation 3020438 37433
Total operating expenses 16133107 14762620
OPERATINC INCOME (LOSS) 12857524 (1598 637
NONOPERATING REVENUES:
Tares and assessments. 3.423.800 3225391
Inkerest 3.991318 2585630
Ouer:Nowed) Tan 3,886,052
Gain on dispesttion of assess 603581 401,539
O recovenes - 1.199.8%y
Total nonoperattng revenues 86022 11,208,511
NONCPERATING EXFENSES:
Interest 1.17056% 1,368,536
Bond service fees 49247 56,55
Loss cn debt retunding 818997 i
“Total nonoperating expenses 1.838908 1425092
NONOPERATING INCOME 6.187.114 5873419
NET INCOME 33295% 8274782
Add dep nor on utihity plant that reduces capit! (Noke 5) 1039545 1.049.683
Increase in retxined exrnings 1.369.135 9324.465
RETAINED EARNINGS:
Begnning of year, as restated (Mote 12) €6.519.586 57.195121
End of vear 3 70888721 3 06519566

See accompanying notes 1o financial statements.
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South Coast Water District
Notes to Financial Statemerts
For the years ended June 30, 2001 and 2000

1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A Nature of Orgamization

The South Coast Water District (the District) was formed 1n 1932 under the Calfomia Water Code.
The District serves an area of approximately 10 square miles, encompassing portions of the aties
of Dana Point, Laguna Beach, San Clemente and San Juamn Capistrano

South Coast Water District
Comparative Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended June 30, 2001 and 2000

2001 200
CASH FIOWS FROIM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Openatng inceme ticssi § (28573579 (1.598 637
Adjustnensd tu recen 1 e upersang income ioss)
et cashi previdesd 1used; by operatmy actvabes
Depreviaior and samomzaticn 302,433
(Increase) devvease in accounts recelvable 1E48
(In:reaser dexreast: in tares and uterest receivable 1681, 4631
(Incrwase devvease 1. motrrialand supphy mventery 114387
(Inc709%:1 detrase in Tropaid expenses 48834
Increase [de:rease) i a:counts paatle and accrued labdiaes 912218
Increase (decease] ir. deposits 15,619
Net cash provided by operating activities 565,282
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES -
CASH RFCEIVED FROM TAXES AND ASSESSMENTS 3423800 3.29539
CASHFLOWSFROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINNANCING ACTIVITIES:
Pavenent 1. rvpuzchase wonneenen fees . 1350,000)
Contributed yahty plar 1.442,204 175768
Repayment of acivances for onstrucaon (7826 13834
New refundmy debt, net 660,000 -
Pavamenb un bonds, state loans and COPs (TR0 915.785)
Procecds “rom State ‘can 3,650,000 -
Interest pans n debe 1192222 (1353410
Ga:nor. sale ¢ refunding bonds 4100 -
Bona sery e fevs 6556
Payment trade on carial lease obhgabons (16667
Net cash provided fused) by capital and related financing activities 2,880,962 (2502.818)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACITVITIES:
Purchases cfinvestments (4.450.605) BAWIYY)
Addiaons o) ned assets (9355953 (2159.026)
Proceeds to.ms b of tiaed assen, 6013 25:2788
Capital iproverent d2posits for [P'As (181.571) .
Interest earnips 3991318 2385630
OCIP rconenes - 2197243
Total cash provided (used) in invesling activities (3.050.796) (3,252,758}
Net incease (decreasel in cagh and cash equrit.alevtts (2180.734 (399562}
CASH ANDCASH FQUTV ALENTS,
Beginring cf vear 25392 361 2579195
End of vear S BT 3392361
SLPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE:
Cash pid for interest during the year s L1 136412
Assets purchased - capal lease obligations 21062 164711
Noncash utility: plant contsibutiors 56387 .
Noncast: contnbutions from Tri Cibes MWD{(Note 8) 3886052
Additons to aseets held under trust (Note 8) 474922 3798105
Deletion of full depensted fixed assets 1.358.956 -
Loss or detstrefunding inorcash) 618.997 -

See accompanying notes te financal statements
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South Coast Water District
Notesto Financial Statements, Continued
For the years ended June 30, 2001 and 2000

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued

A. Natureof Organization, Continved

The Distnct's water supply is p

d from the M

Municpal Water Oistrict of Orange County

B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus

Water District through the

Effective Tuly 1 1976, i accordance with Orange County Reorganization No. 31, the District was
designated as the successor to the South Laguna Sarutary District for the purpose of succeeding to
all nghts, duues and obligations of the South Laguna Sanitary District. These sewer functions are
performed by the District under the title of the South Coast Water District Improvement District
No. 1-5 The Improvement Districl serves an area of approxamately 2,750 acres, all lecated within
the water ocperation boundaries

In February 1997, the Distnct entered into an agreement for the detachment of the Laguna
Sur/Monarch Pount Community of the District to be annexed to Moulton Niguel Water District
(the Reorganization RO%-E). [hs reorganization was effective July 1, 1997,

The District has partiapated in studies over the last five vears focusing on the key components of
consolidation among water and sewer districts In June 1998, the District was the pnirary 6iling
applicant in a request for consolidation filed with the Local Agency Formation Coaumussion of
Orange County (LAFCO). In October 1998, LAFCO adopted a resolution (R(197-13) 1o be coffective
January 1, 1999 and provides for the consolidation of the South Coast Water District and the
Capistrano Beach Water District, and the dissolution of the Dana Point Sanitary Bistnct  The
Distnict was cstablished as the successor agency.

The consolidated District has estabished four separate financial zones compnsing the areas
currently withea (1) The Original South Coast Water District; (2) Dana Point Sanitary District; (3)
Capistrano Beach Water Distnct; and (4) Capistrano Beach Water District Sewer Improvement
Distnct No. 1. The financial zones will separately account for assets, reserves, bond obligations
and operations  Rates, charges and assasssments for waler and sewer services may vary befween
financial zones The consolidation took effect January 1. 1999

Effective Tuly 1. 1999, the portion of the onginal South Coast Water District that lies within the
City of Laguna Beach was annvxed to the City of Laguna Beach. The agreement between the
District and the City of Laguna Beach provides for the Distnct to continue both water and sewer
service 10 this area for several years. The agreement provides for armual extensions of the service
provided unless termmated by either party.

Effective March 31, 2000, in accordance with LAFCO resolution (RO 99407), the Owtnct was
designated the contract operator for future operations and maintenance of the system and
facilitbes of the furmer TriCrties Municipal Water District (TCMWD), which was legally
consolidated with Coastal Municipal Water District, the successor agency. The net assets of
TCMWD. other than TCMWD hoard and LAFCO directed operating and other cash reserves,
transferred over ¥ the participating agencies, equal to their rispective owncrship percentages,
were assigned to the District to be heid in trust and used for the benefit of the agreement
participants (See Note 8).

The accounts of the District are accountid for using the accrual basis of accounting  Ther
revenues are recognized when they are eamed and become measurable, expenses are recogruzed
when they are incurred  The District has opted to apply all of the GASB Pronouncements. but wili
aprlv all FASB Statements and Interpretabuns issued after November 30, 1389, except tor those
that conflict with or contradsct GASB Pronouncements  Unbilled service receivables have not
been recorded 1 the financial statecents. the eftect of which 1s unmatenal

The accounts ot the Distact are organized on the basis of a proprietary fund, since the operations
are hinamnced in a manner sinular to private business enterpnses and are. as a result. accounted for
on a cost of services or “ectmorms rescurces” measurement focus  This means that all asscts and
liabalihes (whether current or noncurrent) are included on the balance sheets. The reported rund
equity presenls total net assets. The operating statements present increases (rovenucs) and
decreases (expenses) in total net assets

C. Uniform Accounting System

The Listnct is required to follow the Uruform Svstem of Accounts as prescribed by the Califorua
State Controller’s Oftice for watcr utilities

D. Rudgetary Practices
Each yuar the District adopts a budget which provides for the general operations of the Agency

Budgets are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. Expend. that exceed budgeted cost
center totals by certaur percentages must be approved by the Distnet’s Board

E Join! Powers Agreevment

The District is party to several jomnt powers agreements with the Aliso Water Management
Agency (AWMA), South East Regional Reclamation Authority (SERRA). South Orange County
Rexlamation Authority (SOCRA) all of which consolidated July 1. 2000 as South Orange County
Wastewater Authonty (SOCWA) and are also participants in San juan Bastn Authority for the
purpose of vperating and ining awr drelivery, and csposal facilities as
well as management of regional groundwater and recycled water facilitics,

hdl

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purposes of the stasement of cash flows, the Distict considers all highly liquid
nvestmenis with a maturnity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

8



South Coast Water Dnslncl
Notes to Fi i i d
Forthe vears ended june 30, 2001 and 2000

1. SUMMARY OFf SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued

G. Imvestments

In accordance with GASB Statement No 31, Accounhng and T'mancial Reporting for Certam
Investments andd for External investrent Pools, highly liqud market investments with maturities of
one vear or less at time of purchase are stated a amortized cost. All other investments are stated
at tair value. Market value is used as tair value for those securibies for which market quotations
are readilv available.

The Distnct particip n an ool ged by the State of Califorma titled Local
Agency I[nvestment Fund (LAIF), which has invested a portion of the pool funds in Structured
Notes and Asset-Backed Secunties. LAIF's investments are subject v credit nsk with the full faith
and credit ot the Stabe of Califorrua collateralizing these investments. In additan, these
Structured Motes and Asset-Backed Sccurihes are subjext to market risk as to change in nserest

rates.

. Utility Plant

Utility plant assets are stated at cost Contributed unlity plant assets are recorded at fair market
value at the time they are received and cousist pnmanly of patable water, nxycled water and
sewer systems contribuled bv real estate developers. The depreaation on the contributed utility
plant assets for the years ended lune 30. 2001 and 2000 was $1.029,345 and $1049,683,
respectively, and was charged to the related contrnbuted capital accounts. General plant includes
vetucles financed tluough capital lease agreements with a remairing outstanding liability of
$140,881 and $173.642at June 3. 200 and 2800, respectively

Depreciation and d using the straightline method over the estimated
useful lives of the assets geneullv as ou(hmd by the State Controliers’ Report on Fixed Assets:
Tract facilibes reser 3 €
facilides, colk lines and i g 50 years
C facilities. recl ls, pumpmg plants
and sewer connections 40vears
Collection system Wyears
Meters 12years
Power operated equipment. office furniture and automotive 10 years
Tools and computer haxdware S years
Computer software 3 years

Interest cost incurred during the period of construchion on utility plant assets 15 capitatized. The
amount of capitalized interest cost for the years ended June 30, 2001 and 2000 was $78,085 and
$66.077. respectively

Effective July 1 1999, the Distnct changed its accounting estimates relating to its depreciable
assews. The estunated service lives of some fixed assets were decreased in order to inaintain
cormistency within all senice areas The change was based upon a study performed by the
Districts Accounnng Department. As a result of the change. net income for the Vear ended
Tune 30, 2000 was decreased by $466,932

South Coast Water District

Notes to Fi ial S ts, C

For the years ended June 30, 2001 and 2000

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued

M. lmplementation of New GASB Pronowncement

In 2001, the District adopted a new accounting standard i order to conform to Governmental
Ac dards Board (GASB) No. 33, Accounting and Financwuel Reporting for Non-
Exchange Tmnfnmons

GASB No. 33 established recording assets and revenues when the underlving exchange occurred,
enforceable legal claum had arisen, all eligibility requirements had been met or when resowrtes
were recerved, whichever was first By adopting this Standard, the District r d assets and
revenues from Non-Exchange Transactons wiuch included property taxes and assessments
These NonExchange Transactons were acvounted for as susceptible to accrual wsing the
measurable and available cntena.

2 CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Cash and investments are included in the accompanying balance sheets at fair value as follows:

w000
Reswicted asses
Envestnents $ 10,196.351 s 8742521
Cashand investments with fiscal agent 11372180 11,202,594
Bond reserve fund 360,087 334590
Cuarrent assets
Operations.
Cash 497,243 387.49%
Investments 20.219.073 20,600,347
Board - designated.
Investments 9.205,333 7.590,008
Totals $ 51850.167

Cash and investments are classified as demand deposits and investments by credit nsk casegories as

P d in section C foll and as sur d are as follows:
2001 200
Canying amount - demand deposits §  4mMM3 0§ 3874%
[nvestments 51.353,024 48,676,060
Totals $ 51,850,167 $ 49,263,550
— —

South Coast Water District
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued
For the years ended June 30, 2001 and 2000

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Contunued

L Bond Issuance Costs

The bond 1ssuance costs relating t> 1978 Refunding Bonds imatured in May 2001). 1995 Sewer
Refunding Bonds and 1998 Water and Wastewater Certificates ¢f Partapation are being
amortized as interest expense over the term of the bond 1ssues using a method which
approximates the effective intcrest rate method. The- accumulated amortization on the above
noted 1ssuance costs for the vears ended june 30, 2001 and 200C. was $273,497 and $237.1¢%,
respectively.

Property Taxes
Property tax in Califorrua ;s levied in accordance with Article XILi\ of the State Constitubion at 1 o

of countywide assessed valuations The proporty taxes are placed 1n a poul. and then allocated 1o
the local govemmental uruts

Propurty tax revenue is rocognuzed 1 the fiscal year in which taxes are ened

The property tax calendar is as follow's.

Lien date: January 1
Levy date: Jutv L
Duedate Furstinstaliment - November 1C

Second nstalment - February 19
Furst nstallment - December11
Secorud installment - Aprii 11

Delinquent dake

The District hasreceived the entire portion of the first and second installments in each of the vears
reflected.

Compensated Absences

The District has a policy wherehy an employer can accumulate unused sick leave and vacabon
The sich leave is to be used for extended periods of sichness, however, upon termunation or
retirement. a will be paid as additional benefits. Upon completion of employment,
employees with three years or more service will be paid for 50% of the then unused sick leave at
regular payroll rates i effect at the date of the tennination. The Distnct has provided for these
future costs by accrung 75% of eamed and unused sick leave and 100% of earned and unused
vacation. The balances at June 30, 20C1 for sick leave and vacation were $564,390 and $213,547
respectively, and are included m acccunts payable and accrued labilities 1n the accompanving
balance sheets. The balances at June 30, 2000 for sick leave and vacaton were $391,846 and
$206,440 respectively and are similarly ceflected.

Use of Lstimates

The financial are prep. with g v accepted accotuntng pnnaples
in the Uruted States and, accordmg]) mclude amﬂu.ms that are based on managements hest
estimates and judgenents Actualresults could differ from those cstimates

1

South Coast Water District
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued
For the years ended June 30, 2001 and 2000

2. CASI1 AND INVESTMENTS, Continued

Cashand cash equivaients consist of the fcllowing at June 30, 2001 and 2000

__xm 2000
Total deposits S 49140 H 387490
Local Agency Investment Fund __21714.‘& 25.004.871
Totals § 2321627 S 35392361
——— e ————

A. Authorized Investments

The District’s investment guidelines as defined by the District’s written mvestment policy. wen:
approved by the Board of Directors Implementation and direction thereunder are established by
an internal finance committee. Monthly, the Board ratifics the investments that have been made

Under provisions of the District’s investment policy and in accordance with Secton 53601 of the
Califorria Government Code, the District invests its idle cash using the “Prudent Person Rule ~
The Oistrict may invest in the following types of investments:

® Securites of the US. Government or agenaes, fully guaranteed as to pavment by the US
Government or the agency.

e Certificates of the Deposit placed with commercial banks and/or savings and loan
companies which are irgured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or
collateralized with the appropnate amount of govermment secunbes or home mortgages.

e Califorma Local Agency Invesonent Fund (LAIF).

. California Local Agency Fund

LAFisa special fund of the California State Treasury through which local governments may pool

Per LAIF deli the Orstrict may nvest up to $30.000.000 i the fund
Investments in LAIF are hlghl_\' liquid, as deposits can be converted to cash within 24 hours
without lass of ovterest

The District’s investment with Local Agercy Investment Fund (LAIF) at Jurw 30, 2001, include a
portion of the pool funds invested :n Souctured Notes and Asset-Backed Secuntics. These
investment include the following:

e  Structured Notes are debt secunties (other than asset-backed securities) whose cash flow
characterist (coupon rate, redemgTban amount, or stated maturity) depend upon ove or
more vudices and/or that have embedded forwards or options



South Coast Water District
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued
For the years ended June 30, 2001 and 2000

2 CASH AND INVESTMENTS, Continued

B. Californialosal Agency Investment Fund, Continuved

South Coast Water District
Notes to bi ial § Conti
For the years ended June 30, 2001 and 2000

d

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS, Continued

C. Classification o f Deposits and Investments by Credit Risk, Continued

e Asset-Backed Secunties, the bulk of which are mortgage-backed securities. entitle their Based on the aforementioned criteria, the Distnct's deposts and investinenty were categorized as

purchasers to receive a share of the cash flows from a pool of assets such as principal and
mterest repavinents from a pool of mortgages (such as Collaterized Mortgage
Obligations) or credit card receivables

As of june 30, 2001, the District had $22,714.484 invested in LAIF, which had inwested 1.506% of
the pocl investment funds in Structured Notes and Asset-Backed Securites The L.AIF tatr vatue
factor of 1 002237525 was used to calculate the fair value of the investments in LAIF

C. Classification of Deposits and Investments by Credit Risk

The Distniet’s deposits and investments are classified into three categories of credit nsk. These
categones are as follows:

Deposits

s Category 1 - Depusils that are insured or collateralized with securities held by the District
or by 1ts agent in the Distrit’s name
e Category 2 - Deposts that are collateralized with securities held by pledging hinancal

institution's trust department or agentin the District's name.
»  Category 3 - Deposits thatare uncollateralized or collateralized with secunties held by the

pledging financial inshtuhon or by its department or agent, butnotin the District’s name

Investments

® Calegory 1- Investments that are insured or registered or securities held by the District or
by 1ts agent an the District’s name

e Catepory 2 - Investments that include uninsured and wvegistered investments for which
the sevunities are held by the counterparty’s trust department or agent in the District's

name
e Catepory' 3 - Inv that include d and gi d for which
the securities are held by the counterparty, or by its trust department or agent but not in

the District’s name

Inv m pools ged by other govi or in mutual funds are not required to be

categonzed

follows at lune 30, 2001 and 2000

2000
Cavegory Bank Fair
. 2 N Balances Value
Depesits demand accunts S 6T 8N 4 S 1425 S o3, S 4vTagd
Not Reyeiced Fait
1 3 Lo be Categonzed Vawe
Investmerts
Cortitiates of 1Jepos:t $ 16031 S s 3 S L6003
LS GaverneeniSecunoes 15260242 360.087 15626329
Cash wath; fiscal agent 1A R 1780
Calitorrua Loval Agency
Investment Fund - 2714483 2714483
Total investments § 15906273 § $ 60087 § MRess S 5135302
2000
Categury Bank Fau
| 2 3 Balances Vaive
Deposits - demand iwcourts § 553094 S S 1100 S S54300 § 38749
Category ot Reyquined Faw
1 2 3 10 be Late gorized Valve
lesestments
Certiicates of Deposit $ 1506008 § -8 -3 $ 158004
U'S. Governmeni Secunives - 334,550 334590
ceasury Bills 10.787.941 - 11787641
Cestiisemtesaf Patiopation 1126259 11.202.5%
Calerma Local Agency
Investment Fund - - 25.004 871 25.004 871
Totalinvestmenits § 23536599 ¢ S 334590 S 25004871 §48.£76.060

South Coast Water District
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued
For the years ended June 30, 2001 and 2000

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS, Continued

South Coast Water District
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued
For the years ended June 30, 2001 and 2000

3. BONDS AND LOANS PAYABLE, Continued

A 1978 Water Bonds

C. Classification of Deposits and Inoestments by Credit Risk, Continxed

Ine $2750,000 principal amount of the 1978 General Obligation Water Bonds for the South Coast
Service Area were issued to finance the construction of an underground storage reservorr and
retated facilibes. The rermaming bonds bear interest at 5.0% to 53% and mature 1n vanous
amounts through 2003. The annuai requircmints tu service the outstardding berus at June 30,
2001 are as follows

The District's investment 1n LAIF 1s $22,714,484 and $25,004871 at Jure 30. 2001 and 2000,
respectnely This investment's value is based on informaton provided by the State Treasurer’'s
Office The carrying value of the Distnct's position in the fund is consistent wiith the fair vatue of
the fund shares.

Fiscal agents hold investment funds on betal! of the District which represent the proceeds from

long-term debt 1ssuances held as bond reserves. Bond indentures specify the types of securities in Year Ending
which debt proceeds can be invested. Investments held by fiscal agents consist primarily of US. June 39, Principal Lntevest Totals
Government securities. 2002 s 200000 % 2050 8 200
2003 210,000 10,500 220.500
3. BONDS AND LOANS PAYABLE Totre 5 tooe 3 N0 3100
The foliowing is a summary of bonds andloans payable at june 30 2001 and 2000:
B. 1478 Sewer Refunding Bends
2001 2000 4 "8
1978 1ssues The $3,225000 principal amount of 1978 General Obligation Sewer Refunding Bonds for South
Water Bonds $ 4000 s 70,000 Cuasl Serwice Area Improvement District No. ! for the purpose of refunding certain 1974 General
Sewer Refundiry. Bonds - 130,000 Obligation Sewer Bonds to achieve savings in debt service pavments. The 1974 General
1991 ssue - WalerBonds 4060000 Obligation Sewer Bonds were issued for the purpose of sewage system unprovements and were
2
1992 ispue - Water Bonds - 950,000 walied for redemption prior to matunty in July 1985, The remamung bonds bear interest at 6.0%
1993usue- Reverue Bonds 3750000 3850,000 and mature and were fully repaid in Mav 2001
1993 State Kesexvou Cover Loan 87,863 102562
1995 Sewer Refunding Bond 1.850.000 1950000 C 199i Water Bonds
1998 Water Revenue Refundmg Bonds 2,004,080 20792800
m::l'l’;:l"‘x _"": fundins Bods ;;;:;: i In March 1991, the $5,000.000 principal amount of 1991 General Obligaton Bonds for the South
iDPhganon Refundire —_— Coast Service Area were issued to finance the construction and acquisition of a Cranszusson
18763.123 13691802 pipeline from a new water supply source and the construction of water reclamation facilities The
Lo senal bonds bear interest at 63% to 83% and mature in various amounts through 2016 The
Cumremporaon - resancted (1094159 (1014.59) bonds were refunded in November 2000 by the 2000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds
Bond tsuance costs ennz v ‘

Totals

S 17457252
———

$ 14048945
—

D. 1992 Wat er Bonds

In June 1992, the $3,500,000 pnnapal amcunt of 1992 General Obligadgon Bends for the South
Coast Service Area were issued to fmance the construction and acquisition of a transmission
pipeline from a new water supply source and the construction of water reclamation facilites. The
serial bonds bear interest at 6 0% to 8.0% and mature in various amounts through January 1, 2018
The bonds were refunded in November 2000 by the 2000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds

AtJune 30, 2001 and 2000. the District for the South Coast Service Area has accumulated proceeds of
$2,432229 and $2,576,793, respectively, from taxes and interest earned thereon which will be used to
repay the bonds payable and accrued interest. The Distnct has invested these funds which are
included as restricted assets and designated retained earnings in the accompanying bhalance sheets.
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South Coast Water District
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued
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3. BONDS AND LOANS PAYABLE, Continued 3 BONDS AND $0OANS PAYABLE, Continued
F. 1993 Revenue Bonds G. 1995 Sewer Refunding Bonds
In Mav 1993, the 54.380.000 principal amount of 1993 Revenue Bonds in conjunction with the The $2.445.000 principal amount of the 1995 Installment Purchase Payment Refumding, Bonds for
Coastal Districts Finannng Authority for the Sauth Coast Service Area were issued to finance the the DanaPoint Service Area in conjunction with the San Margarita /Dana Point Authunty were
acquisition and construction of certain improvements and facilities to the water supply, treatment 1ssued fcr the purpose of refunding the outstanding principal amount of the 1989 Instaliment
ana distribution syssems. The senal bonds bear interest at 40% to 5.9% and mature m various Purchase Payment Bonds. The 1989 Installment Purchase Payment Bonds were issued to
amounts through 2021 The annual requirements to service the outstanding bonds at June 30, purchase additional capacity in the South East Regional Reclamation Authonty Wastewatcr
2001 are as follows: Treatment Plant. The retnairang bonds bear interest at 45 te 5.375% and mature i various
amounts through July 2014 The annual requirements to service the outstanding bonds at June 3i),
Year Ending, 20C1 are as follows:
lurn:30, Mrincipal Interest lulals
2002 $ 105000 § 24620 & 319.620 Year Ending
2003 110.000 319370 Junedu. Pnnapal Interes: Totals
2004 125,000 318.760 $ Wi S «“8S § 1993385
2005 120.000 317.722 110,000 89 660 199,660
2006 130,000 321303 115000 84500 199 600
- = 1 4
Thereafter 3.170.000 4.858.951 2005 129.000 79281 199.281
Totals $  2.750.000 5 2705726 $ 6455726 2006 130.000 73581 203581
Ihereafter 1,270,008 324263 1,594.263
Totals 1,830,000 $ 745770 3 355770
All of the Bonds pavable contain redemption provisions which require the District to pay Less bond issuance cost (2n.712)
specified premiums based or the period from the date of redemption to the bonds’ original N
maturity date. Toul RERUIE 3
F. 1993 State Reservoir Cover Loan
R H. 1998 Water Revenue Refunding Bonds
As a result of LAFCO resolution (RO 99-07), the District, for Capistrano Beach Water Service Area,
became responsible for its proportional share (26.17%) of the State Reservou Cover Loan in As a result of LAFCO resolution (RO 99-97). the District, for the Capistrano Beach Water Service
conjunchon with the instailation of & cover on a portable reservor  The loan baears interest at Area, became responsible for its proportional share, 37.60%, of the Water Revenue Refunding
2925% and matures at vanous annual installments threugh 2006 The annual requirements to Bonds Series 1998 in conjunction with the financing of construction and acguisiton ol a
service the outstanding balance at lune 30 2001 are as follows- tranarrussion pipeline from a new watersupply source The serial bonds bear interest at 3.75% to
‘ 500% and mature in various amounts through 2018 The armual requirements to service the
Year Ending outstanding bonds at June 30, 2001 are as follows:
Jure 38 Principai Interest Tolals
2002 3 15571 § 1901 § 20,475 Year Ending
200 16495 3980 20,475 —JunedC._ Princigal =~ Interet = Tolals
2004 17.475 3.000 20475 2002 s 78,960 $ 95,640 s 174,600
2005 18.512 1.963 20475 2003 92467 175 187
2006 19.810 665 20475 2004 88.718 173318
Totals S 7863 § 145§ 102375 005 31753 174993
2006 80553 174553
Thermafter 514,320 2.087 B8O
Cotals $ 2004080 S 956,457  $ 2960537
17 18

South Coast Water District
inued Notes to Financial Statements, Continued
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South Coast Water District
Notes to Fii ial S C
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3. BONDS AND LOANS PAYABIE, Continued 4. CERTIFICATES OF PARTICIPATION

1 2000 State Revolving Loan The following 15 a summary of Certificates of Parhicipation payable as of fune 30, 2001 and 2008 with
changes thereon.

The District qualified for a State lean of $7,600,000 for the Capistrana Beach Service Area’s

purchase of capadty in SERRA  In Ducember 2000, the Disirict received the first phase of funding 2001 200

in the amount of $3.650,000. The loan is a zero percent interest loan with annual prinapal

installments maturing in 2020, The annual requirements to service the outstanding balance at 1998 v{'m cor $ 882000 § 8980000
June 30. 2001 are a:sfollows 1998 Wwastewater COP 3,005.000 3.015,000 _
11.825,000 11,995,000
Year Ending Less
June 30, Principal _ Interest Totals Cunent porton {175000) 17,000)
2002 S 241628 S -8 244628 Bond 1ssuarvce costs (449392)  (465733)
2003 243628 - 244,628 267
2008 24628 ) 244628 Totals $ 11200608 $ 11,359,267
2005 244628 - 244,628
206 244628 - 244,628
Thereafter 2,208 (40) - 22008 ,040 A. 1998 Certificates of Participation, Water Eaterprise Capital Improcanent Project
Totals ,5_2& ;==§ ;Bi‘g}';& The 38,980,000 principal amount of the 1998 Certificates of Participation (Certficates). Water

P Capital Impr Project. for the Capistranc Beach Water Service Area. were
issued to finance certain capital improvements. establish a reserve iund and pay expenses related
to the execution and dekivery of the Certificates which are due in varying installments through
December 2028 with interest ranging from 3 33% 10 498 %

]. 2000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds

In November 2000, the $7,670.000 principal amount of 2000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds
(Refunding Bands) for the South Coast Service Area were 1ssued for the purpose o refinance, and
m defease the ding 1%1 Water Bonds, with interest rates ranging from 6 3%- Year Ending

8.3% and 1992 Water Bonds, with interest rates ranging from 6% to 8% and to pay costs associated Jone3n Princypal Inferest Totols
with refunding, totaling $192.410. The net proceeds of $7.386,700 were used to purchase U'S -

Government Securities yielding 2.55% to 6.0%. These Secunties were deposited with an escqow
agent to provide for the debt service of the 1991 and 1992 Water Bonds As a result, the 1991 and

2002 $ 165,000 s 402,635 $ 567635
2003 175.000 396,598 571,508

1992 water bonds are considered to be defeased and the liability for these bonds has been 2004 180.000 390118 570.118
removed. Although the advance refunding resulted in an accounting loss of $618,997 for the year 2005 185000 383272 368272
ended June 30, 2001, the District i cffect reduced its total debl service payments by 2006 195,000 375,955 570,955

Thereafter 2,920.008 5,070,424 12.990.424

approximately $1.35 million over the next 17 ycars and obtaned an exonoeuc gain (difference
helwe.e1 the present values of the old and new dzbf sarvice payments) of $888.294. The Bands Totals 8820000 S 701900 9,002
bear interest at 40% to 50% and mature n various amounts through 2017 The annuai ~ L2zt
requirements to service the outstanding bonds at June 30, 2001 are as follows: Less bond 1ssuance costs ___(311.725),

Total $ 3508275
Year Ending —————Cm—
June 30, Prircipal Interest Totals
2002 $ 315,000 5 2358 3 667,358
2003 355.000 308,558 663,558
2004 375,000 294358 669,358
2005 390,000 279,358 669.358
2006 400.000 263,758 663,756
Thereafter 5.365.000 1,558,755 6,923,755
Totals $ 7230000 $ 302.45 $ 10257145
0
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4 CERTIFICATES OF PARTICIPATION, Continued
B. 1998 Certificates of Participation, Wastewater Enterpnrise Capital Improvement Project

The $2.015.000 principal amourt of the 1998 Certificates of Pariaipabon (Certificates), Wastewater
Enterprise Capitai Improvement Project. tor the Capistrano Beach Sewer Senvice Area
Improvement District No 1. were issued to finance certain capital improvements, establish a
reserve fund and pay expensesrelated to the execusion and delivery of the Certificates which are
due in varying installments through December 2028 with interest ranging from 3 33% to 3 99%

Year Ending
June 30. Prnapal Interest Totals
2002 $ 3 141,603 S 151603
2002 141248 151,248
2004 140,790 155790
2005 140,218 155228
2006 15,000 139,650 154,650
Thereatter 2.940.000 2,470,921 5410,921
Totals 3.005 000 $ 3174440 =$ 6 I79,H(\=
Less bond issuance costs 137,667
Total S 286730

5. CHANGES IN CONTRIBUTED UTILITY PLANT

A sununarw of the changes in cantnbuted utility plant for the years ended June 30. 2001 and 2000
15 as follows

Balance july 1, 19%9 $ 31.0%68%
Less depreciation on contributed assets {1.049,683)
Current contributed utility piant (cash)

Balance lure 30. 2000 30.16297%
Less depreciabon on contributed assets (1,089,545)
Current contrbuted utibity plant (cash) 1442204

Current contributed utibty plant (non-cash}

Balance June 30. 2001

South Coast Waler Dnshlct
Notes to F
For the years ended June 30, 2001 and 2000

9. PENSION PLAN
A Plan Descniption

The Dlslncl contributes to the Calllomu Public Employees’ Retrement System (PEKS). an agent

ipl ployer public ploy system that acts as a commen investment and
admuristrative agent for participatmg public entities within the Stake of Califorua  Copies of
PERS annual finamcial report may be obtaned from their office located at 400 P Street,

Sacramento, California 95814

All full-me District employees are eligible to participate in PERS with benetits veshng after five
vears of service District emplovees who retire at age 60 with five years cf credited service are
entited tc an annual retirement benefit, pavable monthly for life, in an amount equal to 2% of
their salary dunng their highest vear of employment. for each year of credited service PERS also
provides death and disabality benefits

In July 1998, the Board of Directors approved a revision to the Distnct's PERS retirement contract,
Beginning in September 1998, current Distnct employees who retire at age 55 with five years of
credited service are entitied to an annual retirement benefit. payable monthly for life, in an
amount equal th 2% of their salary duning thewr highest year of employment, for each year of
credited service  For employees commencing parhicipation after Septemnber 1998 the Denefit
computation will be the same as prior to this amendment.

=

, Yunding Policy

District employees are required to contribute 7% of their salary to PERS Thc District, as part of
the total compensation package for all employees. pays the empl iby to PERS
through the PERS Pickup Plan. The District is required to contnbute at an actuarially determined

rate. The current rate is 0.000%.

€ AnnuaiPension Cost

For the fiscal year 2000-20(1], the District’s annual pension cost of $240300 for PERS was equal to
the Oistrict’s required and actual contnbuhon The required contribution was determined as part
of the June 30. 2000 actuana! valuaton using the entry-age-normal-actuanal-cost method. The
actuarial assumptions included (a) 8.25% investment rate of returm (net of administrative
expe.nse), {b) projected annual salary inwreases that vary by duraton of service, and {c) no
progected costol-lving ad Both (a)and (b) included an inflation component of 3.5%.

The actuarial value of PERS assets was determined using techniques that smooth the effects of
short-term volatility in the market value ot over a fouryear peried (; hed market
value). The District hasno unfunded actuarial liability.

South Coast Water District
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued
For the years ended June 30, 2001 and 2000

6. CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS

The District has entered into various capital lease agrcements for motor vemdes  the future
min:mum lease ~avmenits under these noncancelable leases at lune ), 2001 are as follows

Year Endog
Tune30

7. ADVANCE CONNECTION CHARGES

The Distnct had entered wito an agreement with a certain developer that has provided cash advances
tuward future sewer connection charges that would be due to the District for the developer's planned
estiental housing,  The intention of these non-interest bearmg advances was to help finance the
Distnict « share of certan regiona. wastewater faclines In return. the District agreed to credit the
develope;, on certain terms and condition:. 11 the amount advanced fcr connection charges to be
levied on the developer's properhes as the properties wer:: developed. For the vear enced June 30,
199y, the Distnict's liability for unused connection charge credits was 5550,000. Durnir g the vear ended
June 4, 2000, Lhe Distnct repurchased the unused comnection charge credits for $350,000. This
payment termnaled the Distnct's contractual obigation to the developer. As a result of this
transaction. a gan of $200,000 was recorded by the Districtand presented as a gam cn disposition of
assets in nonoperatng revenues on the statements of mcome and retained earmings for the vear ended
Jane ¥, 200

8. ASSETS HELD UNDER TRUST

Pursuant to Orange Countvy Local Agency Commussion Reorgaruzation No RO3-07, Tri-Cibes
Muniaapal Water District (TCMWD) was consolidated with Cosstal Municipal Water District
(CMNWD; wherein CMWD became the legal successor-in-interest to TCMWD, and TCMWD ceased to
exist effective March 31, 2000 In addition, CMMWD transferred ownership of ail muscellaneous assew
and habihties, not otherwase provided for by separate agreemenss, to the District and transferred all
other powers, rights and duties of TCMWD to the District as of the effective date

The agreement provided for a ansfer in ownership for various assets and liabilitics The District
recorded ncnoperating income of $3,886,052 relating to such direct transfers. Thc agreement also
provided fer the District to act as a trustee for the remaining assets and liabiliies not transferred
under the direct ownership. The remaining portion of the d net assets to
$8,347.325 and $3.798,105 at June 30, 2001 and 2000 respectively. are presented on the balance sheets
as Assets Held Under I'rust.

South Coast Water District
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued
For the vears ended June 30,2001 and 2000

9. PENSION PLAN, Continued
C. Annual Pension Cost, Canlinued

THREE YEAR TREND INFORMATION FOR PERS

Annual Percentage
June 30 Penswon Cost of APC Net Pension
Fiscal Year (APC) Coninbuted Obbgaton
1999 $ 262893 DLILLN -
2000 191218 100% -
2001 240300 100% -

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Overfunded
Actuanal
EwyAage  Overturded Liability as
Actaria) Actuarial Perceneage of
Valation Ancrund Acaued Tunded Caovererd Coveral
Liabibty Liabthty Rato Payroll Payroll
$ 7564129 § 7345670 S 218458 1030%  § 221458 99%
B.662.441 B4AN617 7,74 1028% 24,916 117
9.992.048 9.152.018 840,00 1092% 27,262 412%
11.765,142 9816621 1948521 119.8% 2070.951 X 1%
14,714,410 11567308 3,127,107 7 o% 3,081,421 1032%
16504,154 12668 072 3836082 1303% 3,626,938 105.8%

10 POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The District provides post-employment health care benefits with requirements. depending on - the
employee's uutial employment date as follows:

e For employees of record as of May 18, 1988. S vears of full-me continuous employment with
thw District is required. In addition, the employee must be at least 50 years of age and have
partiopated an the PERS plan for at least 5 years as well as receiving service retirement
henefits pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Distnct PERS plan.  The District pays
100% of the medical plan premium from the date of retirement until the employee 5 eligible to
receive Medicare benefits  For eligible dependents, all but $25 of the plan premium is paid. In
addition, the Distnct will pay Medicare companion care civits when the employee ts eligible
tor Medicare benefits The District accounts for the post-cmployment healhcare benefits on a
cash basis

* For employees commencng emplovment subsequent to May 18. 1988, 20 years of ful ltime
continuous employment is required  In addition, the emplovee must be at least 55 years of age
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10. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS, Continued

and have participated in PERS as well as receiving service retirement benefits pursuant to PERS
plan requirements. The District pay's 100% of the plan preruum for emplovee coverage from the
date of retirement until the employeeis eligible to receive Medicare benef:ts  Thereafter, Medicare
supplement insurance 1s provided atthe District's expense

During the years ended june 30. 2001 and 2000. the Dastrict paid $111,128 and $71,812, respectiveely in
post-employment health care benefits

11. RISK MANAGEMENT

The District 1s exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft. damage to and destruction of
assets, errors and omissions, injurles to employees and natural disasters. I an effort to manage its
risk exprosure, the District 1s a member of the Assocation of Califona Waler Agencies font Powers
Insurance Authonty (Authonty)

The Authonty is a risk-pooling self-insurance authority. created under provisions of California
Government Code Sections 6500 et seq. The purpose of the Authonty is to arrange and administer
programs of insurance for the pooling ot self-asured losses and to purchase excess insurance
coverage.

.AtJune 0, 2001, as a member of the Authorny, the Distzivt particpated in the insurance programs as
tellows

e Droperty Loss - The District retains risk of loss up to $1,000 (deductible amount); the
Authority is self-insured up to $50.000 and insurance coverage has been purchased to cover
losses ranging from $50.000 to$100.000.000

® Auto and General Liability - Insured up to S20,000,000 per occurrence with oo deductible; the
‘Authanty 15 self-insured up to S500,000 and excess insuram.e has been purchased to cover
losses ranging from S500.000 to S20,000.000

* Public Officials’ Errors and Omissions - The Autherity is seif-insured up to S500.000 and
excess insuranwe coverage has been purchased to cover losses ranging from $500,000 to
$20.000,000.

e labilitv Insurance {Underground Storage Tarik Pollution) - Insured up to $1,000.000 with
$10.008 deductibie; the Authority i self-snsured up to S500.000 and excess insurance coverage
has been purchased tocover losses ranging trom $300, 000 to $1.008,000.

o Fidelity Policy - The District has purchased insurance coverage for losses up to $100,000 with
2 $1.000 deductible.

e Workers’ Compensation - The District retamns the nisk per occurrence of $250,000 for loss
sustamned by the employer (District) because of liability imposed ow the employer (District) by
the Workers' Compensation Act, with excess insurance to 55,000,000 abuve the self-insured
retention of $250.000

CGL

Caporicd, Cropper & Larson, LLP
Certified Pubiic Accounzants

South Coast Water District
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued
For the years ended June 30, 2001 and 2000

12 PRIOR PERIOD RESTATEMENT

In prior vears. the District had recorded property taxes and assessment revenue as of the levy date  [n
accordance with GASB Statement No. 33, to properly recognize property taxes and assessment
revenue when the property was liened (January 1), the amounts tor the vear ended func 30, 2000 were
restated as follows"

As
Previas\ B
Bgoned  Adusheres  Restated

Taxes and intevest resetvable - cestncted $ 21318 § A3 $ LOISAK
Taxes and interest nexesvable -current unresoicted 67200 219,603 251653
Retaired earmungs - desigrated for bond

1ntvvest redemption 1.774.48¢ 80232 2576793
Retawe varmngs - undesignated 42020433 2198,60 219,03
lawes and assessments - nonoperating revere 1.692.330 1466.929) 3205391

Offices lacated in
Bay Area
Ocange County
Sacramento

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL RFPORTING
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCEWITH GOVERNMENT AUDIT'ING STANDARDS

The Board of Directors of the
South Coast Water Distnict
Laguna Beach California

We have audited the financial statements of South Coast Water District as of and for the vear ended June
30, 2001, and have issued our report thereon, dated March 20, 2002. We conducted our audit in accordance
with generally accepted auditing standards in the United States and the standards applicable to finanqal
audits contained in Gorernment Audihng Standards, ssued by the Comptroller General of the United States

Compliance
As part of obtainmg reasonable assurance about whether South Coast Yvater District's financial statements
are free of material we d tests of its \pli: with certain provisions of laws,

P
regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with whuch could have a direct and material effect on the
determunation of financal statement amounts FHowever, providing an opuuon on compliance with those
prowvisions was not an objective of our audil and, accordinglv. we do not express such an opirdon. The
tesuls of our tests disclused no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Stundards

Internal Over Financial Reporti

In planrung and perfurmmng our audit, we considered South Coast Water District’s internal control over
financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpos of expreseing our opinon
on the financial statements and not to provide assurance on the inlernal control over financial reporting
Qur consideration of the internal control over finarwal reporting w ould not necessarily disclose all matvers
in the itemal control over tmancial reporting that tnight be material weaknesses A mawr.al waakness is a
condition 1n which the design or operation of one or more of the internal conlrol companents does rot
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that weuld be matenal in relation to
the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period try employees
in the normal course of perfornung their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal
control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be matenal weaknesses

This report is intended for the information and use of the Board of Directors and management, and is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specitied partes

»dywhu', Cunn-v f‘ Lmeas, LEP

Costa Mesa, Califoriua
March 20, 2002

“oll Free Teb (677) 862.2200 Tol bree Fax: (866 436-092°
Sery Ares e mid Sacrmmante
1111 Brabvay, Suse 1400 - Same 200
Oatard, Calina $48T € omta Vel 92625 SacramemO. Cunternes 75425



APPENDIX B
SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE INDENTURE

The following is a brief summary of the provisions of the Indenture not
otherwise summarized in the text of this Official Statement. Such summary is not
intended to be definitive, and reference is made to the complete Indenture for the actual
terms thereof.

Definitions
As used in this Summary, the following terms have the following meanings. In
addition, terms defined elsewhere in this Official Statement and not otherwise defined

in this Summary have the meanings given them in this Official Statement.

“Additional Revenues” means, with respect to the issuance of any Parity
Obligations, any or all of the following amounts:

(@ An allowance for Net Revenues from any additions or
improvements to or extensions of the Enterprise to be made with
the proceeds of such Parity Obligations and also for Net Revenues
from any such additions, improvements or extensions which have
been made from moneys from any source but in any case which,
during all or any part of the latest Fiscal Year or for any more recent
consecutive 12 month period selected by the District, were not in
service, all in an amount equal to 90% of the estimated additional
average annual Net Revenues to be derived from such additions,
improvements and extensions for the first 36 month period in which
each addition, improvement or extension is respectively to be in
operation, all as shown by the certificate or opinion of a qualified
independent engineer employed by the District.

(b) An allowance for Net Revenues arising from any increase in the
charges made for service from the Enterprise which has become
effective prior to the incurring of such Parity Obligations but which,
during all or any part of the latest Fiscal Year or for any more recent
consecutive 12 month period selected by the District, was not in
effect, in an amount equal to the total amount by which the Net
Revenues would have been increased if such increase in charges
had been in effect during the whole of such Fiscal Year or 12 month
period, all as shown by the certificate or opinion of an Independent
Accountant or Financial Consultant employed by the District.

“Authority” means the Coastal Districts Financing Authority, a joint powers

authority duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of California.

“Bond Counsel” means (a) Jones Hall, A Professional Law Corporation, or (b)
any other attorney or firm of attorneys appointed by or acceptable to the District of
nationally-recognized experience in the issuance of obligations the interest on which is
excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes under the Tax Code.
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“Bond Insurance Policy” means the municipal bond insurance policy issued by
the Bond Insurer insuring the payment when due of the principal of and interest on the
Bonds as provided therein.

“Bond Insurer” means Financial Security Assurance Inc, a New York stock
insurance company, its successors and assigns, as issuer of the Bond Insurance Policy.

“Bond Year” means any twelve-month period commencing on July 2 in a year
and ending on the next succeeding July 1, both dates inclusive; except that the first Bond
Year commences on the Closing Date and ends on July 1, 2004.

“Closing Date” means April 8, 2003, being the date of delivery of the Bonds to
the original purchaser of the Bonds.

’

“Enterprise” means, collectively:

(a) the entire water treatment, production, storage and distribution
system owned or operated by the District, including but not limited
to all facilities, properties and improvements at any time owned or
operated by the District for the collection, treatment and supply of
water within the service area of the District, together with any
necessary lands, rights, entitlements and other property useful in
connection therewith, together with all extensions thereof and
improvements thereto hereafter acquired, constructed or installed
by the District; and

(b) the entire wastewater collection, treatment and disposal system
owned or operated by the District, including but not limited to all
facilities, properties and improvements at any time owned or
operated by the District for the collection, treatment and disposal of
wastewater within the service area of the District, together with any
necessary lands, rights, entitlements and other property useful in
connection therewith, together with all extensions thereof and
improvements thereto hereafter acquired, constructed or installed
by the District.

The Enterprise does not include any property which the District determines is
not essential to the purposes described in the foregoing clauses (a) or (b), including but
not limited to property declared by the District to be surplus.

“Federal Securities” means any direct general obligations of the United States of
America (including obligations issued or held in book entry form on the books of the
Department of the Treasury of the United States of America), for which the full faith and
credit of the United States of America are pledged.

“Financial Consultant” means any consultant or firm of such consultants
appointed by the District and who, or each of whom: (a) is judged by the District to have
experience in matters relating to the financing of water and wastewater enterprises; (b)
is in fact independent and not under domination of the District; (c) does not have any
substantial interest, direct or indirect, with the District; and (d) is not connected with the
District as an officer or employee of the District, but who may be regularly retained to
make reports to the District.
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“General Fund” means the existing fund by that name established and held by
the District with respect to the Enterprise.

“Gross Revenues” means all gross charges received for, and all other gross
income and receipts derived by the District from, the ownership and operation of the
Enterprise or otherwise arising from the Enterprise, including but not limited to
investment earnings thereon; but excluding (a) connection charges, (b) Tax Revenues, (c)
the proceeds of any special assessments or special taxes levied upon real property within
any improvement district served by the District levied for the purpose of paying special
assessment bonds or special tax obligations of the District relating to the Enterprise, and
(d) any taxes levied for the sole purpose of providing for payment of principal and
interest on any voter-approved indebtedness incurred by the District, which taxes
would not otherwise be subject to levy but for the issuance of such indebtedness.

“Maximum Annual Debt Service” means, as of the date of any calculation, the
maximum sum obtained for the current or any future Fiscal Year so long as any of the
Bonds remain Outstanding by totaling the following amounts for such Fiscal Year:

(a) the principal amount of the Bonds coming due and payable by their
terms in such Fiscal Year, including the principal amount of the
Term Bonds which are subject to mandatory sinking fund
redemption in such Fiscal Year; and

(b) the amount of interest which would be due during such Fiscal Year
on the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds which would be
Outstanding in such Fiscal Year if such Bonds are retired as
scheduled; the amount of interest which would be due during such
Fiscal Year on the aggregate principal amount of all outstanding
Parity Obligations, if any, which would be outstanding in such
Fiscal Year if such Parity Obligations are retired as scheduled.

L

“Moody’s” means Moody’s Investors Service, its successors and assigns.

“Net Revenues” means, for any period, an amount equal to all of the Gross
Revenues received during such period minus the amount required to pay all Operation
and Maintenance Costs becoming payable during such period.

“1993 Bonds” means the $4,380,000 aggregate principal amount of Coastal
Districts Financing Authority South Coast Water District Capital Facilities Revenue
Bonds, Issue of 1993 issued by the Authority under the Indenture of Trust dated as of
April 1, 1993, between the Authority and First Interstate Bank of California, as trustee.

“Operation and Maintenance Costs” means the reasonable and necessary costs
and expenses paid by the District for maintaining and operating the Enterprise,
including but not limited to (a) costs of acquisition of water to be supplied by the
Enterprise, (b) costs of electricity and other forms of energy supplied to the Enterprise,
(c) the reasonable expenses of management and repair and other costs and expenses
necessary to maintain and preserve the Enterprise in good repair and working order,
and (d) the reasonable administrative costs of the District attributable to the operation
and maintenance of the Enterprise; but in all cases excluding (i) debt service payable on
obligations incurred by the District with respect to the Enterprise, (ii) depreciation,
replacement and obsolescence charges or reserves therefor, (iii) amortization of
intangibles or other bookkeeping entries of a similar nature, and (iv) costs and expenses
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which are treated by the District as capital expenditures, including but not limited to the
purchase of water not required for current consumption.

“Permitted Investments” means any of the following which at the time of
investment are legal investments under the laws of the State of California for the moneys
proposed to be invested therein:

(@) Federal Securities;
(b) Federal Housing Administration debentures.

(c) The listed obligations of government-sponsored agencies which are not
backed by the full faith and credit of the United States of America:

-Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation
Participation certificates (excluded are stripped mortgage
securities which are purchased at prices exceeding their principal
amounts)

-Senior Debt obligations

-Farm Credit Banks (formerly: Federal Land Banks, Federal Intermediate
Credit Banks and Banks for Cooperatives)
Consolidated system-wide bonds and notes

-Federal Home Loan Banks
Consolidated debt obligations

-Federal National Mortgage Association
Senior debt obligations
Mortgage-backed securities (excluded are stripped mortgage
securities which are purchased at prices exceeding their principal
amounts)

-Student Loan Marketing Association
Senior debt obligations (excluded are securities that do not have
a fixed par value and/or whose terms do not promise a fixed
dollar amount at maturity or call date)

-Financing Corporation
Debt obligations

-Resolution Funding Corporation
Debt obligations

(d) Unsecured certificates of deposit, time deposits, and bankers’ acceptances
(having maturities of not more than 30 days) of any bank, including the Trustee or its
affiliates, the short-term obligations of which are rated “A-1" or better by S&P.

(e) Deposits the aggregate amount of which are fully insured by the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC), in banks, including the Trustee or its affiliates,
which have capital and surplus of at least $5 million.

(f) Commercial paper (having original maturities of not more than 270 days)
rated “A-1+" by S&P and “Prime-1” by Moody’s.

(g) Money market funds rated “AAm” or "AAm-G” by S&P, or better,

including funds for which the Trustee or its affiliates or subsidiaries provide investment
or other advisory services.
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(h) “State Obligations”, which means:

(i) Direct general obligations of any state of the United States of
America or any subdivision or agency thereof to which is pledged
the full faith and credit of a state the unsecured general obligation
debt of which is rated “A3” by Moody's and “A” by S&P, or better,
or any obligation fully and unconditionally guaranteed by any state,
subdivision or agency whose unsecured general obligation debt is
so rated.

(ii) Direct general short-term obligations of any state agency or
subdivision or agency thereof described in (i) above and rated “A-
1+” by S&P and “Prime-1” by Moody’s.

(ili) Special Revenue Bonds (as defined in the United States Bankruptcy
Code) of any state, state agency or subdivision described in (i)
above and rated “AA” or better by S&P and “Aa” or better by
Moody’s. :

(i) Pre-refunded municipal obligations rated “AAA” by S&P and “Aaa” by
Moody’s meeting the following requirements:

(i)  the municipal obligations are (1) not subject to redemption prior to
maturity or (2) the trustee for the municipal obligations has been
given irrevocable instructions concerning their call and redemption
and the issuer of the municipal obligations has covenanted not to
redeem such municipal obligations other than as set forth in such
instructions;

(ii) the municipal obligations are secured by cash or Federal Securities
described in clause (a) of the definition thereof (“United States
Treasury Obligations”) which may be applied only to payment of
the principal of, interest and premium on such municipal
obligations;

(iii) the principal of and interest on the United States Treasury
Obligations (plus any cash in the escrow) has been verified by the
report of independent certified public accountants to be sufficient to
pay in full all principal of, interest, and premium, if any, due and to
become due on the municipal obligations (“Verification”);

(iv) the cash or United States Treasury Obligations serving as security
for the municipal obligations are held by an escrow agent or trustee
in trust for owners of the municipal obligations;

(v) no substitution of a United States Treasury Obligations shall be
permitted except with another United States Treasury Obligation
and upon delivery of a new Verification; and

(vi) the cash or United States Treasury Obligations are not available to
satisfy any other claims, including those by or against the trustee or
escrow agent.
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Investment agreements with a domestic or foreign bank or corporation
(other than a life or property casualty insurance company) the long-term debt of which,
or, in the case of a guaranteed corporation the long-term debt, or, in the case of a
monoline financial guaranty insurance company, claims paying ability, of the guarantor
is rated at least “AA” by S&P and “Aa” by Moody'’s; provided that, by the terms of the

investment agreement:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

interest payments are to be made to the Trustee at the times and in

amounts as necessary to pay amounts due with respect to the
Bonds;

the invested funds are available for withdrawal without penalty or
premium, at any time upon not more than seven (7) days’ prior
notice; the District and the Trustee hereby agree to give or cause to
be given notice in accordance with the terms of the investment
agreement so as to receive funds thereunder with no penalty or
premium paid;

the investment agreement shall state that is the unconditional and
general obligation of, and is not subordinated to any other
obligation of, the provider thereof, or in the case of a bank, that the
obligation of the bank to make payments under the agreement
ranks pari passu with the obligations of the bank to its other
depositors and its other unsecured and unsubordinated creditors;

the District and the Trustee receives the opinion of domestic counsel
(which opinion shall be addressed to the District, the Trustee and
the Bond Insurer) that such investment agreement is legal, valid,
binding and enforceable upon the provider in accordance with its
terms and of foreign counsel (if applicable) in form and substance
acceptable, and addressed to, the District, the Trustee and the Bond
Insurer;

the investment agreement shall provide that if during its term

(@) the provider’s rating by either S&P or Moody’s falls below
“AA-“ or “Aa3”, respectively, the provider shall, at its option,
within 10 days of receipt of publication of such downgrade,
either (i) collateralize the investment agreement by delivering
or transferring in accordance with applicable state and federal
laws (other than by means of entries on the provider’s books) to
the District, the Trustee or a third party acting solely as agent
therefor (the “Holder of the Collateral”) collateral free and clear
of any third-party liens or claims the market value of which
collateral is maintained at levels and upon such conditions as
would be acceptable to S&P and Moody’s to maintain an “A”
rating in an “A” rated structured financing (with a market
value approach); or (ii) repay the principal of and accrued but
unpaid interest on the investment, and

(b) the provider’s rating by either S&P or Moody'’s is withdrawn or

suspended or falls below “A-” or “A3”, respectively, the
provider must, at the direction of the District or the Trustee
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(vi)

(vii)

(1)

(i)

(A)

(B)

©)

(who shall give such direction if so directed by the Bond
Insurer), within 10 days of receipt of such direction, repay the
principal of and accrued but unpaid interest on the investment,
in either case with no penalty or premium to the District or
Trustee.

The investment agreement shall state and an opinion of counsel
shall be rendered, in the event collateral is required to be pledged
by the provider under the terms of the investment agreement, at the
time such collateral is delivered, that the holder of the Collateral has
a perfected first priority security interest in the collateral, any
substituted collateral and all proceeds thereof (in the case of bearer
securities, this means the holder of the Collateral is in possession);

the investment agreement must provide that if during its term (a)
the provider shall default in its payment obligations, the provider’s
obligations under the investment agreement shall, at the direction of
the District or the Trustee (who shall give such direction if so
directed by the Bond Insurer), be accelerated and amounts invested
and accrued but unpaid interest thereon shall be repaid to the
District or Trustee, as appropriate, and (b) the provider shall
become insolvent, not pay its debts as they become due, be declared
or petition to be declared bankrupt, etc., the provider’s obligations
shall automatically be accelerated and amounts invested and
accrued but unpaid interest thereon shall be repaid to the District or
Trustee, as appropriate.

Repurchase which meet the following standards and criteria:

The agreement must be with (1) any domestic bank, or domestic
branch of a foreign bank, the long term debt of which is rated at
least “A” by S&P and Moody’s; or (2) any broker-dealer with “retail
customers” or a related affiliate thereof which broker-dealer has, or
whose parent company (which guarantees the provider) has, long-
term debt rated at least “A” by S&P and Moody’s, which falls under
the jurisdiction of the Securities Investors Protection Corporation; or
(3) any other entity rated "A” or better by S&P and Moody’s and
acceptable to the Bond Insurer, provided that:

The market value of the collateral is maintained at levels and upon
such conditions as would be acceptable to S & P and Moody's to
maintain an “A” rating in an “A” rated structured financing (with a
market value approach and without regard to the rating of the
provider);

The Trustee or a third party acting solely as agent therefor or for the
Issuer (the “Holder of the Collateral”) has possession of the
collateral or the collateral has been transferred to the Holder of the
Collateral in accordance with applicable state and federal laws
(other than by means of entries on the transferor’s books);

The agreement shall state and an opinion of counsel shall be
rendered at the time such collateral is delivered that the Holder of
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the Collateral has a perfected first priority security interest in the
collateral, any substituted collateral and all proceeds thereof (in the
case of bearer securities, this means the Holder of the Collateral is in
possession); '

(D) All other requirements of S&P in respect of repurchase agreements
shall be met.

(E) The agreement shall provide that if during its term the provider’s
rating by either Moody’s or S&P is withdrawn or suspended or falls
below “A-” by S&P or “A3” by Moody’s, as appropriate, the
provider must, at the direction of the Issuer or the Trustee (who
shall give such direction if so directed by the Bond Insurer), within
10 days of receipt of such direction, repurchase all collateral and
terminate the agreement, with no penalty or premium to the Issuer
or Trustee.

Notwithstanding the above, if a repurchase agreement has a term of 270 days or
less (with no evergreen provision), collateral levels need not be as specified in (a) above,
so long as such collateral levels are 103% or better and the provider is rated at least “A”
by S&P and Moody’s, respectively.

(m) The Local Agency Investment Fund which is administered by the California
Treasurer for the investment of funds belonging to local agencies within the State of
California. -

(n) Any other investments approved in writing by the Bond Insurer.

“Reserve Requirement” means an amount equal to the maximum amount of
principal of and interest on the Bonds coming due and payable in the current or any
future Bond Year including the principal of any Term Bonds required to be redeemed in
such Bond Year by operation of mandatory sinking fund redemption.

“S&P” means Standard & Poor’s Corporation, of New York, New York, and its
successors.

“Tax Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as in effect on the Closing
Date or (except as otherwise referenced herein) as it may be amended to apply to
obligations issued on the Closing Date, together with applicable temporary and final

regulations promulgated, and applicable official public guidance published, under said
Code.

“Tax Revenues” means all ad valorem taxes levied upon certain taxable property
in the District by the Board of Supervisors of Orange County, and allocated to the
District pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 6 of Part 0.5 of Division 1 of the Revenue
and Taxation Code of the State of California, including all payments, subventions and
reimbursements, if any, to the District specifically attributable to taxes lost by reason of
tax exemptions and tax rate limitations; but excluding any taxes levied for the sole
purpose of providing for payment of principal and interest on any voter-approved
indebtedness incurred by the District, which taxes would not otherwise be subject to
levy but for the issuance of such indebtedness.

“Term Bonds” means the Bonds maturing on July 1, 2021.



Establishment of Funds and Accounts; Flow of Funds

Costs of Issuance Fund. The Trustee will establish the Costs of Issuance Fund
under the Indenture, into which a portion of the proceeds of the Bonds will be deposited
on the Closing Date. The Trustee will disburse moneys in the Costs of Issuance Fund
from time to time to pay Costs of Issuance upon submission of requisitions of the
District. On July 1, 2003, the Trustee will transfer any amounts remaining in the Costs of
Issuance Fund to the Interest Account to be applied to pay a portion of the interest next
coming due and payable on the Bonds.

General Fund. The District has previously established the General Fund, which
it will continue to hold and maintain for the purposes and uses set forth in the
Indenture. The District shall deposit all Tax Revenues and Gross Revenues in the
General Fund promptly upon the receipt thereof, and shall apply amounts in the
General Fund solely for the uses and purposes set forth in the Indenture and for the uses
and purposes set forth in the documents authorizing the issuance of any Parity
Obligations. It is the intention of the District that all of the Tax Revenues received in any
Fiscal Year will be applied to the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds
before any Net Revenues are applied for such purpose.

The District will manage, conserve and apply moneys in the General Fund in
such a manner that all deposits required to be made under the Indenture and under the
documents authorizing the issuance of any Parity Obligations will be made at the times
and in the amounts so required. Subject to the foregoing sentence, so long as no Event
of Default has occurred and is continuing, the District may at any time use and apply
moneys in the General Fund for any one or more of the following purposes:

e the payment of the Operation and Maintenance Costs of the
Enterprise,

e the acquisition and construction of extensions and improvements to
the Enterprise;

e the redemption of any of the Bonds which are then subject to
redemption or the purchase from time to time in the open market of
any Outstanding Bonds whether or not then subject to redemption
(irrespective of the maturity or number of such Bonds) at prices and
in such manner, either at public or private sale, or otherwise, as the
District in its discretion may determine; or

e any other lawful purpose of the District relating to the Enterprise.

Bond Service Fund. On or before the 3" Business Day preceding each Interest
Payment Date, the District is required to withdraw from the General Fund and pay to
the Trustee for deposit into the Bond Service Fund (which the Trustee will establish and
hold in trust under the Indenture) an amount which, together with other available
amounts then on deposit in the Bond Service Fund, is at least equal to the aggregate
amount of principal of and interest coming due and payable on the Bonds on such
Interest Payment Date, including the aggregate principal amount of the Term Bonds
required to be redeemed on such Interest Payment Date under the mandatory sinking
fund redemption provisions of the Indenture.
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The Trustee will apply amounts in the Bond Service Fund solely for the purpose
of (i) paying the interest on the outstanding Bonds when due and payable (including
accrued interest on any Bonds purchased or redeemed under the Indenture), (ii) paying
the principal of the Bonds at the maturity thereof, and (iii) paying the redemption price
of the Term Bonds upon the mandatory sinking fund redemption thereof. Upon the
payment of all outstanding Bonds, the Trustee will transfer any moneys remaining in
the Bond Service Fund to the District for deposit into the General Fund.

Reserve Fund. If the amount on deposit in the Reserve Fund at any time falls
below the Reserve Requirement due to a withdrawal of funds therefrom, or if the
amount on deposit in the Reserve Fund falls below the Reserve Requirement on any
annual valuation date due to a decline in the market value of Permitted Investments
credited thereto, the Trustee will promptly notify the District of such fact and the
District is required to promptly (i) withdraw the amount of such insufficiency from
available Tax Revenues (first) and Net Revenues (second) on deposit in the General
Fund, and (ii) transfer such amount to the Trustee for deposit in the Reserve Fund. No
deposit need be made in the Reserve Fund so long as the balance therein at least equals
the Reserve Requirement. If the amount on deposit in the Reserve Fund exceeds the

Reserve Requirement, the Trustee will transfer such excess amount to the Bond Service
Fund.

If the amounts on deposit in the Bond Service Fund on any Interest Payment
Date are insufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds then coming due,
including the principal amount of Term Bonds required to be redeemed by operation of
mandatory sinking fund redemption, the Trustee will withdraw the amount of such
insufficiency from the Reserve Fund and transfer it to the Bond Service Fund. On the
date on which all Bonds are retired, any moneys then on deposit in the Reserve Fund
will be withdrawn by the Trustee and paid to the District.

Redemption Fund. If the District elects to redeem outstanding Bonds under the
optional redemption provisions of the Indenture, the District will transfer to the Trustee
for deposit into the Redemption Fund an amount at least equal to the redemption price
of the Bonds, excluding accrued interest, which is payable from the Bond Service Fund.
In addition, the District will transfer or cause to be transferred to the Trustee all amounts
required to redeem any Bonds which are subject to redemption from the proceeds of any
sale, eminent domain proceedings or insurance awards with respect to the Enterprise, as
described above in this Official Statement. The Trustee will apply amounts in the
Redemption Fund solely for the purpose of paying the redemption price of Bonds, other
than the mandatory sinking fund redemption of Term Bonds (which is payable from the
Bond Service Fund).

Covenants of the District

In addition to the covenants made by the District under the Indenture which are
described elsewhere in this Official Statement, the District makes the following
covenants for the benefit of the Bond owners:

Operation of Enterprise in Efficient and Economical Manner. The District
covenants and agrees to operate the Enterprise in an efficient and economical manner
and to operate, maintain and preserve the Enterprise in good repair and working order.
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Sale or Eminent Domain of Enterprise. The District covenants that the Enterprise
will not be encumbered, sold, leased, pledged, any charge placed thereon, or otherwise
dispose of, as a whole or substantially as a whole if such encumbrance, sale, lease,
pledge, charge or other disposition would materially impair the ability of the District to
pay the principal of or interest on the Bonds or any Parity Obligations, or would
materially adversely affect its ability to comply with the terms of the Indenture or the
documents authorizing the issuance of any Parity Obligations. The District may not
enter into any agreement which impairs the operation of the Enterprise or any part of it
necessary to secure adequate Tax Revenues and Net Revenues to pay the Bonds and any
Parity Obligations, or which otherwise would impair the rights of the Bond Owners
with respect to the Tax Revenues and the Net Revenues. If any substantial part of the
Enterprise is sold, the payment therefor must either (a) be used for the acquisition or
construction of improvements and extensions or replacement facilities or (b) be applied
on a pro rata basis to redeem the Bonds and any Parity Obligations in accordance with
the Indenture and the documents authorizing such Parity Obligations, respectively.

Any amounts received as awards as a result of the taking of all or any part of the
Enterprise by the lawful exercise of eminent domain, if and to the extent that such right
can be exercised against such property of the District, must either (a) be used for the
acquisition or construction of improvements to the Enterprise, or (b) be applied on a pro
rata basis to redeem the Bonds and any Parity Obligations in accordance with the
Indenture and the documents authorizing such Parity Obligations, respectively.

Records and Accounts. The District will keep proper books of record and
accounts of the Enterprise, separate from all other records and accounts, in which
complete and correct entries shall be made of all transactions relating to the Enterprise.
Said books shall, upon reasonable request, be subject to the inspection of the Bond
Insurer, the Trustee and the Owners of not less than 10% of the outstanding Bonds or
their representatives authorized in writing.

The District will cause the books and accounts of the Enterprise to be audited
annually by an independent accountant and will make available for inspection by the
Bond Owners at the Office of the Trustee, upon reasonable request, a copy of the report
of such independent accountant.

Tax Covenants. The District will not take, nor permit nor suffer to be taken by
the Trustee or otherwise, any action with respect to the proceeds of any of the Bonds
which would cause any of the Bonds to be “arbitrage bonds” or “private activity bonds”
within the meaning of the Tax Code. The District agrees to comply with all provisions
of the Tax Code relating to the rebate to the United States of America of excess
investment earnings derived from the Bond proceeds.

Amendment of Indenture

The Indenture may be modified or amended at any time by a supplemental
indenture with the written consents of the Bond Insurer and the Owners of a majority in
aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then outstanding. No such modification or
amendment may:

(i)  extend the maturity of any Bond or reduce the interest rate thereon,

or otherwise alter or impair the obligation of the District to pay the
principal thereof, or interest thereon, or any premium payable on
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the redemption thereof, at the time and place and at the rate and in
the currency provided therein, without the written consent of the
Owner of such Bond, or

(i) permit the creation by the District of any mortgage, pledge or lien
upon the Tax Revenues or the Net Revenues superior to or on a
parity with the pledge and lien created for the benefit of the Bonds
(except as expressly permitted by the Indenture), or reduce the
percentage of Bonds required for the affirmative vote or written
consent to an amendment or modification, or

(iii) modify any of the rights or obligations of the Trustee without its
written consent.

The Indenture and the rights and obligations of the District and of the Owners of
the Bonds may also be modified or amended at any time, without the consent of any
Owners of the Bonds, but only for any one or more of the following purposes:

(i) to add to the covenants and agreements of the District contained in
the Indenture, other covenants and agreements thereafter to be
observed, or to limit or surrender any rights or power therein
reserved to or conferred upon the District;

(ii) to cure any ambiguity, or to cure, correct or supplement any
defective provision contained in the Indenture, or in any other
respect whatsoever as the District deems necessary or desirable,
provided under any circumstances that such modifications or
amendments do not materially adversely affect the interests of the
Owners in the opinion of Bond Counsel filed with the District and
the Trustee, provided that any amendment under this subsection (ii)
must have the prior written consent of the Bond Insurer;

(iii) to provide for the issuance of Parity Obligations, and to provide the
terms and conditions under which such Parity Obligations may be
issued, including but not limited to the establishment of special
funds and accounts relating thereto and any other provisions
relating solely thereto;

(iv) to amend any provision to assure the exclusion from gross income
of interest on the Bonds for federal income tax purposes under the
Tax Code, in the opinion of Bond Counsel filed with the District and
the Trustee.

Events of Default and Remedies

Events of Default. Each of the following events constitutes an Event of Default
under the Indenture:

(a) Failure to pay any installment of the principal of any Bonds when
due, whether at maturity as therein expressed, by proceedings for
redemption, by acceleration, or otherwise.
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(b) Failure to pay any installment of interest on the Bonds when due.

(c) Failure by the District to observe and perform any of the other
covenants, agreements or conditions on its part contained in the
Indenture or in the Bonds, if such failure has continued for a period
of 30 days after written notice thereof, specifying such failure and
requiring the same to be remedied, has been given to the District by
the Trustee or the Bond Insurer; provided, however, if in the
reasonable opinion of the District the failure stated in the notice can
be corrected, but not within such 30 day period, such failure does
not constitute an Event of Default if the District institutes corrective
action within such 30 day period and thereafter diligently and in
good faith cures the failure in a reasonable period of time not to
exceed 60 days from the occurrence of such failure.

(d) The District commences a voluntary case under Title 11 of the
United States Code or any substitute or successor statute.

(e) The occurrence and continuation of an event of default under and
as defined in any Supplemental Indenture authorizing the issuance
of Parity Obligations.

For purposes of determining whether any event of default has occurred under
and as described in the preceding clauses (a) or (b), no effect shall be given to payments
made by the Bond Insurer under the Bond Insurance Policy.

Remedies. If an Event of Default occurs and is continuing, the Trustee may with
the prior written consent of the Bond Insurer, and at the written direction of the Bond
Insurer or (with prior written consent of the Bond Insurer) at the written direction of the
Owners of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then outstanding the
Trustee must, (a) declare the principal of the Bonds, together with the accrued interest
thereon, to be due and payable immediately, and upon any such declaration the same
will become immediately due and payable, anything in the Indenture or in the Bonds to
the contrary notwithstanding, and (b) exercise any other remedies available to the
Trustee and the Bond Owners in law or at equity to enforce the rights of the Bond
Owners under the Indenture.

Notice to Bond Owners. Immediately upon becoming aware of the occurrence of
an Event of Default, the Trustee is required to give notice of such Event of Default to the
District and to the Bond Insurer by telephone confirmed in writing. Such notice shall
also state whether the principal of the Bonds has been declared to be or have
immediately become due and payable. With respect to any Event of Default described
in clauses (a) or (b) above the Trustee shall, and with respect to any Event of Default
described in clause (c) above the Trustee in its sole discretion may, also give such notice
to the Owners in the same manner as provided in the Indenture for notices of
redemption of the Bonds, which shall include the statement that interest on the Bonds
shall cease to accrue from and after the date, if any, on which the Trustee declares the
Bonds to become due and payable under the preceding paragraph (but only to the
extent that principal and any accrued, but unpaid, interest on the Bonds is actually paid
on such date).
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Application of Funds Upon Acceleration. All amounts received by the Trustee
pursuant to any right given or action taken by the Trustee under the provisions of the
Indenture will be applied by the Trustee as follows and in the following order:

(a)  First, to the payment of any fees, costs and expenses incurred by the
Trustee to protect the interests of the Owners of the Bonds; payment
of the fees, costs and expenses of the Trustee (including fees and
expenses of its counsel, including any allocated costs of internal
counsel) incurred in and about the performance of its powers and
duties under the Indenture and the payment of all fees, costs and
expenses owing to the Trustee, together with interest on all such
amounts advanced by the Trustee at the maximum rate permitted
by law and to the payment of any amounts owed to the Bond
Insurer.

(b)  Second, to the payment of the whole amount then owing and unpaid
upon the Bonds for interest and principal, with interest on such
overdue amounts at the respective rates of interest borne by those
Bonds, and in case such moneys shall be insufficient to pay in full
the whole amount so owing and unpaid upon the Bonds, then to the
payment of such interest, principal and interest on overdue
amounts without preference or priority among such interest,
principal and interest on overdue amounts ratably to the aggregate
of such interest, principal and interest on overdue amounts.

(c)  Third, to the Bond Insurer for any amounts due and owing to the
Bond Insurer as a result of its indemnification of the Trustee for
payment of the costs and expenses of the Trustee in declaring such
Event of Default and in carrying out the remedies granted under the
Indenture.

Power of Trustee to Control Proceedings. If the Trustee, upon the happening of
an Event of Default, takes any action, by judicial proceedings or otherwise, in the
performance of its duties under the Indenture, whether upon its own discretion, with
the consent or at the direction of the Bond Insurer, or upon the request of the Owners of
a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then outstanding, it has full
power, in the exercise of its discretion for the best interests of the Owners of the Bonds,
with respect to the continuance, discontinuance, withdrawal, compromise, settlement or
other disposal of such action. The Trustee may not, unless there no longer continues an
Event of Default, discontinue, withdraw, compromise or settle, or otherwise dispose of
any litigation pending at law or in equity, if at the time there has been filed with it a
written request signed by the Owners of a majority in principal amount of the
outstanding Bonds opposing such discontinuance, withdrawal, compromise, settlement
or other disposal of such litigation.

Limitation on Owners’ Right to Sue. No Owner of any Bond has the right to
institute any suit, action or proceeding at law or in equity, for any remedy under or
upon the Indenture, unless:

e said Owner has previously given to the Trustee written notice of the
occurrence of an Event of Default;

B-14



e the Owners of a majority in aggregate principal amount of all the
Bonds then outstanding have requested the Trustee in writing to
exercise the powers granted under the Indenture or to institute such
action, suit or proceeding in its own name;

e said Owners have tendered to the Trustee indemnity reasonably
acceptable to the Trustee against the costs, expenses and liabilities to
be incurred in compliance with such request; and

e the Trustee has failed to comply with such request for a period of 60
days after such written request has been received by, and said tender
of indemnity has been made to, the Trustee.

Rights of Bond Insurer

Anything in the Indenture to the contrary notwithstanding, upon the occurrence
and continuation of an Event of Default, the Bond Insurer is entitled to control and
direct the enforcement of all rights and remedies granted thereunder to the Bond
Owners, or to the Trustee for the benefit of the Bond Owners, including but not limited
to the right to approve all waivers of any Events of Default. The rights so granted to the
Bond Insurer will be deemed terminated and will not be exercisable by the Bond Insurer
during any period during which the Bond Insurer is in default under the Bond
Insurance Policy.

The Bond Insurer will be deemed to be the Owner of all Bonds insured under the
Insurance Policy for the following purposes and during the following times: (a) at all
times for the purpose of the execution and delivery of a supplemental agreement
relating to any amendment, change or modification of the Indenture; (b) at all times with
respect to the initiation by the Bond Owners of any action to be taken under the
Indenture by the Trustee at the request of such Owners, which under the Indenture
requires the written approval or consent of or permits initiation by the Owners of a
specified principal amount of Bonds then outstanding; and (c) following the occurrence
of an Event of Default for all other purposes.

To the extent the Indenture confers upon or gives to the Bond Insurer any right,
remedy or claim under or by reason of the Indenture, the Bond Insurer is explicitly
recognized as being a third-party beneficiary under the Indenture and may enforce any
such right, remedy or claim conferred, given or granted under the Indenture.

Defeasance of Bonds

The District has the right to pay and discharge the entire indebtedness on any
Bonds in any one or more of the following ways:

e by paying or causing to be paid the principal of and interest on such
Bonds, as and when the same become due and payable;

e by irrevocably depositing with the Trustee or an escrow bank, in
trust, at or before maturity, an amount of cash which, together with
the available amounts then on deposit in the funds and accounts
established under the Indenture, in the opinion or report of an
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independent accountant is fully sufficient to pay such Bonds,
including all principal, interest and redemption premium, if any;

e Dby irrevocably depositing with the Trustee or an escrow bank, in
trust, Federal Securities in such amount as an independent accountant
determines will, together with the interest to accrue thereon and
available moneys then on deposit in any of the funds and accounts
established under the Indenture, be fully sufficient to pay and
discharge the indebtedness on such Bonds (including all principal,
interest and redemption premium, if any) at or before maturity; or

e by purchasing such Bonds prior to maturity and tendering such
Bonds to the Trustee for cancellation;

Upon such action, and notwithstanding that any such Bonds have not been
surrendered for payment, the pledge of the Tax Revenues and Net Revenues and other
funds provided for in the Indenture and all other obligations of the Trustee and the
District under the Indenture with respect to such Bonds will cease and terminate.

Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions, in the event that the principal of and
interest and redemption premium on the Bonds are paid by the Bond Insurer pursuant
to the Bond Insurance Policy, the obligations of the Trustee and the District will continue
in full force and effect and the Bond Insurer will be fully subrogated to the rights of all
Owners of the Bonds so paid.
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APPENDIX C

FORM OF
BOND COUNSEL OPINION

April 8, 2003

Board of Directors

South Coast Water District

31592 West Street

Laguna Beach, California 92651-6907

OPINION: $3,795,000 South Coast Water District
2003 Enterprise Revenue Refunding Bonds

Members of the Board of Directors:

We have acted as bond counsel to the South Coast Water District (the
“District”) in connection with the issuance by the District of $3,795,000 aggregate
principal amount of bonds of the District designated the “South Coast Water District
2003 Enterprise Revenue Refunding Bonds” (the “Bonds”), under the provisions of
Articles 10 and 11 of Chapter 3 of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5 of the California
Government Code, commencing with Section 53570 of said Code (the “Bond Law”),
under an Indenture of Trust dated as of April 1, 2003 (the “Indenture”), between the
District and BNY Western Trust Company, as trustee, and under a resolution of the
Board of Directors of the District adopted on February 20, 2003. We have examined the
Bond Law, an executed copy of the Indenture and such certified proceedings and other
papers as we deem necessary to render this opinion.

As to questions of fact material to our opinion, we have relied upon
representations of the District contained in the Indenture and in the certified proceedings
and other certifications of public officials furnished to us, without undertaking to verify
the same by independent investigation.

Based upon our examination we are of the opinion, under existing law, that:

1. The District is a county water district organized and existing under the laws
of the State of California, with power to enter into the Indenture, to perform the
agreements on its part contained therein and to issue the Bonds.

2. The Bonds have been duly authorized, executed and delivered by the

District and are legal, valid and binding obligations of the District, payable solely from
the sources provided therefor in the Indenture.
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South Coast Water District
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3. The Indenture has been duly approved by the District and constitutes a
legal, valid and binding obligation of the District enforceable against the District in
accordance with its terms.

4. Under the Bond Law, the Indenture establishes a valid lien on and pledge of
the Tax Revenues and the Net Revenues of the Enterprise (as such terms are defined in
the Indenture) for the security of the Bonds and any obligations issued on a parity
therewith.

5. Theinterest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income
tax purposes and is not an item of tax preference for purposes of the federal alternative
minimum tax imposed on individuals and corporations; it should be noted, however,
that, for the purpose of computing the alternative minimum tax imposed on
corporations (as defined for federal income tax purposes), such interest is taken into
account in determining certain income and earnings. The Bonds are “qualified tax-
exempt obligations” within the meaning of Section 265(b)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986 (the “Tax Code”) and, in the case of certain financial institutions (within
the meaning of Section 265(b)(5) of the Tax Code), a deduction is allowed for eighty
percent (80%) of that portion of such financial institutions’ interest expense allocable to
interest payable with respect to the Bonds. The opinions set forth in the preceding
sentences are subject to the condition that the District comply with all requirements of
the Tax Code that must be satisfied subsequent to the issuance of the Bonds in order
that interest thereon be, or continue to be, excluded from gross income for federal income
tax purposes. The District has covenanted in the Indenture to comply with each such
requirement. Failure to comply with certain of such requirements may cause the
inclusion of interest on the Bonds in gross income for federal income tax purposes to be
retroactive to the date of issuance of the Bonds. We express no opinion regarding other
federal tax consequences arising with respect to the Bonds.

6. The interest on the Bonds is exempt from personal income taxation imposed
by the State of California.

The rights of the owners of the Bonds and the enforceability of the Bonds and the
Indenture may be subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, moratorium and other similar laws
affecting creditors’ rights heretofore or hereafter enacted and their enforcement may be
subject to the exercise of judicial discretion in accordance with general principles of
equity.

Respectfully submitted,

Jones Hall,
A Professional Law Corporation
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APPENDIX D

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE

This Continuing Disclosure Certificate (this “Disclosure Certificate”) is executed
and delivered by the South Coast Water District (the “District”) in connection with the
issuance of the $3,795,000 aggregate principal amount of South Coast Water District
2003 Enterprise Revenue Refunding Bonds (the “Bonds”). The Bonds are being issued
under an Indenture of Trust dated as of April 1, 2003 (the “Indenture”) between the
District and BNY Western Trust Company, as trustee (the “Trustee”). The District
covenants and agrees as follows:

Section 1. Purpose of the Disclosure Certificate. This Disclosure Certificate is
being executed and delivered by the District for the benefit of the holders and beneficial
owners of the Bonds and in order to assist the Participating Underwriters in complying
with Rule 15¢2-12(b)(5) adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

Section 2. Definitions. In addition to the definitions set forth in the Indenture,
which apply to any capitalized term used in this Disclosure Certificate unless otherwise
defined in this Section, the following capitalized terms have the following meanings:

“Annual Report” means any Annual Report provided by the District under, and
as described in, Sections 3 and 4 of this Disclosure Certificate.

“Dissemination Agent” means the District or any successor Dissemination Agent
designated in writing by the District and which has filed with the District a written
acceptance of such designation.

“Listed Events” means any of the events listed in Section 5(a) of this Disclosure
Certificate.

“National Repository” means any Nationally Recognized Municipal Securities
Information Repository for purposes of the Rule. As of the date of this Disclosure
Certificate, the following is a complete list of all the National Repositories:

Bloomberg Municipal Repository DPC Data Inc.
100 Business Park Drive One Executive Drive
Skillman, New Jersey 08558 Fort Lee, NJ 07024
Phone: (609) 279-3225 Phone: (201) 346-0701
Fax: (609) 279-5962 Fax: (201) 947-0107
Email: Munis@Bloomberg.com Email: nrmsir@dpcdata.com
FT Interactive Data Standard & Poor’s . J. Kenny Repository
Attn: NRMSIR 55 Wastewater Street, 45th Floor
100 William Street New York, NY 10041
New York, New York 10038 Phone: (212) 438-4595
Phone: (212) 771-6999 Fax: (212) 438-3975
Fax: (212) 771-7390 Email: nrmsir repository@sandp.com

Email: NRMSIR@FTID.com
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“Participating Underwriter” means any of the original underwriters of the Bonds
required to comply with the Rule in connection with offering of the Bonds.

“Repository” means each National Repository and each State Repository.

“Rule” means Rule 15¢2-12(b)(5) adopted by the Securities and Exchange
Commission under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as the same may be amended
from time to time.

“State Repository” means any public or private repository or entity designated by
the State of California as a state repository for the purpose of the Rule and recognized
as such by the Securities and Exchange Commission. As of the date of this Disclosure
Certificate, there is no State Repository.

Section 3. Provision of Annual Reports.

(a) The District shall, or shall cause the Dissemination Agent to, not later than
nine months after the end of the District’s fiscal year (which currently would be March
31 based upon the District’s current June 30 fiscal year), commencing with the report due
by March 31, 2004, for the 2003-03 Fiscal Year, provide to each Repository an Annual
Report which is consistent with the requirements of Section 4 of this Disclosure
Certificate. Not later than 15 Business Days prior to said date, the District shall
provide the Annual Report to the Dissemination Agent (if other than the District). The
Annual Report may be submitted as a single document or as separate documents
comprising a package, and may include by reference other information as provided in
Section 4 of this Disclosure Certificate; provided that the audited financial statements
of the District may be submitted separately from the balance of the Annual Report, and
later than the date required above for the filing of the Annual Report if not available by
that date. If the District’s fiscal year changes, it shall give notice of such change in the
same manner as for a Listed Event under Section 5(c).

(b) 1If the District is unable to provide to the Repositories an Annual Report by
the date required in subsection (a), the District shall send a notice to the Municipal
Securities Rulemaking Board and the appropriate State Repository, if any, in
substantially the form attached as Exhibit A.

(c) The Dissemination Agent shall:

(i)  determine each year prior to the date for providing the Annual
Report the name and address of each National Repository
and each State Repository, if any; and

(ii) if the Dissemination Agent is other than the District, file a
report with the District certifying that the Annual Report has
been provided under this Disclosure Certificate, stating the
date it was provided and listing all the Repositories to which
it was provided.

Section 4. Content of Annual Reports. The District’s Annual Report shall
contain or incorporate by reference the following:

(a) Audited Financial Statements prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles as promulgated to apply
to governmental entities from time to time by the Governmental
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(b)

(c)

Any or all of the items listed above may be included by specific reference to other
documents, including official statements of debt issues of the District or related public
entities, which have been submitted to each of the Repositories or the Securities and
If the document included by reference is a final official
statement, it must be available from the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. The
District shall clearly identify each such other document so included by reference.

Exchange Commission.

Accounting Standards Board. If the District’s audited financial
statements are not available by the time the Annual Report is
required to be filed under Section 3(a), the Annual Report shall
contain unaudited financial statements in a format similar to the
financial statements contained in the final Official Statement, and
the audited financial statements shall be filed in the same manner
as the Annual Report when they become available.

To the extent not contained in the audited financial statements filed
under the preceding clause (a), the Annual Report shall contain
information showing the following:

(i) information concerning any revision in the adopted rates and
charges which are generally imposed by the District upon
users within the service area of the Wastewater System;

(ii)) total Tax Revenues and Net Revenues received by the District
during the preceding fiscal year and the amount by which such
Tax Revenues and Net Revenues provide coverage for the
payments of debt service coming due in such fiscal year with
respect to the Bonds and any other Parity Obligations; and

(iii) for any customer whose total billings in the preceding fiscal
year represent 10% or more the Gross Revenues of the
Wastewater Enterprise, (1) the total amount of Gross
Revenues derived from such customer and (2) the percent of
total Gross Revenues represented by such customer for such
fiscal year.

In addition to any of the information expressly required to be
provided under paragraphs (a) and (b) of this Section, the District
shall provide such further information, if any, as may be necessary
to make the specifically required statements, in the light of the
circumstances under which they are made, not misleading,

Section 5. Reporting of Significant Events.

(a) Under the provisions of this Section 5, the District shall give, or cause to be
given, notice of the occurrence of any of the following events with respect to the Bonds,
if material:

(1) Principal and interest payment delinquencies.
(2) on-payment related defaults.

(3) Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting
financial difficulties.
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(4) Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting
financial difficulties.

(5)  Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure
to perform.

(6) Adverse tax opinions or events affecting the tax-exempt
status of the security.

(Z) Modifications to rights of security holders.
8) Contingent or unscheduled bond calls.
9) Defeasances.

(10) Release, substitution, or sale of property securing
repayment of the securities.

(11) Rating changes.

(b) Whenever the District obtains knowledge of the occurrence of a Listed
Event, the District shall as soon as possible determine if such event would be material
under applicable Federal securities law.

(c) If the District determines that knowledge of the occurrence of a Listed Event
would be material under applicable Federal securities law, the District shall promptly
file a notice of such occurrence with the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board and each
State Repository. Notwithstanding the foregoing, notice of Listed Events described in
subsections (a)(8) and (9) need not be given under this subsection any earlier than the
notice (if any) of the underlying event is given to holders of affected Bonds under the
Indenture.

Section 6. Termination of Reporting Obligation. The District’s obligations under
this Disclosure Certificate shall terminate upon the legal defeasance, prior redemption or
payment in full of all of the Bonds. If such termination occurs prior to the final maturity
of the Bonds, the District shall give notice of such termination in the same manner as for
a Listed Event under Section 5(c).

Section 7. Dissemination Agent. The District may, from time to time, appoint or
engage a Dissemination Agent to assist it in carrying out its obligations under this
Disclosure Certificate, and may discharge any such Agent, with or without appointing a
successor Dissemination Agent.

Section 8. Amendment; Waiver. Notwithstanding any other provision of this
Disclosure Certificate, the District may amend this Disclosure Certificate, and any
provision of this Disclosure Certificate may be waived, provided that the following
conditions are satisfied:

(a) if the amendment or waiver relates to the provisions of Sections
3(a), 4 or 5(a), it may only be made in connection with a change in
circumstances that arises from a change in legal requirements,
change in law, or change in the identity, nature, or status of an
obligated person with respect to the Bonds, or type of business
conducted;

(b) the undertakings herein, as proposed to be amended or waived,
would, in the opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel, have
complied with the requirements of the Rule at the time of the



primary offering of the Bonds, after taking into account any
amendments or interpretations of the Rule, as well as any change in
circumstances; and

(c) the proposed amendment or waiver either (i) is approved by
holders of the Bonds in the manner provided in the Indenture for
amendments to the Indenture with the consent of holders, or (ii)
does not, in the opinion of the Trustee or nationally recognized
bond counsel, materially impair the interests of the holders or
beneficial owners of the Bonds.

If the annual financial information or operating data to be provided in the
Annual Report is amended under the provisions hereof, the first annual financial
information filed pursuant hereto containing the amended operating data or financial
information shall explain, in narrative form, the reasons for the amendment and the
impact of the change in the type of operating data or financial information being
provided.

If an amendment is made to the undertaking specifying the accounting principles
to be followed in preparing financial statements, the annual financial information for the
year in which the change is made shall present a comparison between the financial
statements or information prepared on the basis of the new accounting principles and
those prepared on the basis of the former accounting principles. The comparison shall
include a qualitative discussion of the differences in the accounting principles and the
impact of the change in the accounting principles on the presentation of the financial
information, in order to provide information to investors to enable them to evaluate the
ability of the District to meet its obligations. To the extent reasonably feasible, the
comparison shall be quantitative. A notice of the change in the accounting principles

shall be sent to the Repositories in the same manner as for a Listed Event under Section
5(c). :

Section 9. Additional Information. Nothing in this Disclosure Certificate shall be
deemed to prevent the District from disseminating any other information, using the
means of dissemination set forth in this Disclosure Certificate or any other means of
communication, or including any other information in any Annual Report or notice of
occurrence of a Listed Event, in addition to that which is required by this Disclosure
Certificate. If the District chooses to include any information in any Annual Report or
notice of occurrence of a Listed Event in addition to that which is specifically required
by this Disclosure Certificate, the District shall have no obligation under this Disclosure
Certificate to update such information or include it in any future Annual Report or
notice of occurrence of a Listed Event.

Section 10. Default. In the event of a failure of the District to comply with any
provision of this Disclosure Certificate any holder or beneficial owner of the Bonds may
take such actions as may be necessary and appropriate, including seeking mandate or
specific performance by court order, to cause the District to comply with its obligations
under this Disclosure Certificate. A default under this Disclosure Certificate shall not be
deemed an Event of Default under the Indenture, and the sole remedy under this
Disclosure Certificate in the event of any failure of the District to comply with this
Disclosure Certificate shall be an action to compel performance.

Section 11. Duties, Immunities and Liabilities of Dissemination Agent. The
Dissemination Agent shall have only such duties as are specifically set forth in this
Disclosure Certificate, and the District agrees to indemnify and save the Dissemination
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Agent, its officers, directors, employees and agents, harmless against any loss, expense
and liabilities which it may incur arising out of or in the exercise or performance of its
powers and duties hereunder, including the costs and expenses (including attorneys
fees) of defending against any claim of liability, but excluding liabilities due to the
Dissemination Agent’s negligence or willful misconduct. The obligations of the District
under this Section shall survive resignation or removal of the Dissemination Agent and
payment of the Bonds.

Section 12. Beneficiaries. This Disclosure Certificate shall inure solely to the
benefit of the District, the Dissemination Agent, the Participating Underwriters and
holders and beneficial owners from time to time of the Bonds, and shall create no rights
in any other person or entity.

Date: April 8, 2003
SOUTH COAST WATER DISTRICT

By

General Manager
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APPENDIX E
BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM

DTC is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New York Banking Law, a
“banking organization” within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the
Federal Reserve System, a “clearing corporation” within the meaning of the New York Uniform
Commercial Code, and a “clearing agency” registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. DTC holds securities that its participants
(“Participants”) deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the settlement among Participants of
securities transactions, such as transfers and pledges, in deposited securities through electronic
computerized book-entry changes in Participants’ accounts, thereby eliminating the need for
physical movement of securities certificates. “Direct Participants” include securities brokers
and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing companies, and certain other organizations. DTC
is owned by a number of its Direct Participants and by the New York Stock Exchange, Inc., the
American Stock Exchange, Inc., and the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. Access
to the DTC system is also available to others such as securities brokers and dealers, banks and
trust companies that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct
Participant, either directly or indirectly (“Indirect Participants”). The Rules applicable to DTC
and its Participants are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Purchases of Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct
Participants, which will receive credit for the Bonds on DTC’s records. The ownership interest
of each Beneficial Owner is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants’
records. Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase,
but Beneficial Owners are expected to receive written confirmations providing details of the
transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect
Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction. Transfers of
ownership interest in the Bonds are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of
Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive Bonds
representing their ownership interests in Bonds, except in the event that use of the book-entry
system for the Bonds is discontinued.

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Bonds deposited by Participants with DTC are
registered in the name of DTC’s partnership nominee, Cede & Co. The deposit of Bonds with
DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. effect no change in beneficial ownership.
DTC has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the Bonds; DTC’s records reflect only
the identity of the Direct Participants to whose accounts such Bonds are credited, which may or
may not be the Beneficial Owners. The Participants will remain responsible for keeping account
of their holdings on behalf of their customers.

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by
Direct Participants to Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants
to Beneficial Owners will be governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or
regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time.

Prepayment notices will be sent to Cede & Co. If less than all of the Bonds within a
maturity are being prepaid, DTC's practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of
each Direct Participant in such maturity to be prepaid.

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. will consent or vote with respect to Bonds. Under its usual
procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the City as soon as possible after the record date.



The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.’s consenting or voting rights to those Direct
Participants to whose accounts the Bonds are credited on the record date (identified in a listing
attached to the Omnibus Proxy).

Principal and interest payments with respect to the Bonds will be made to DTC. DTC's
practice is to credit Direct Participants’ accounts on the payment date in accordance with their
respective holdings shown on DTC’s records unless DTC has reason to believe that it will not
receive payment on a payment date. Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be
governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is the case with securities held
for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in “street name,” and will be the
responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC, the Trustee or the City, subject to any
statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Payment of
principal and interest to DTC is the responsibility of the City or the Trustee, disbursement of
such payments to Direct Participants will be the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of
such payments to the Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of Direct and Indirect
Participants.

The City and the Trustee cannot and do not give any assurances that DTC will distribute
to Participants, or that Participants or others will distribute payments of principal or interest
with respect to the Bonds paid to DTC or its nominee as the registered Owner, or any
prepayment or other notices, to the Beneficial Owners, or that they will do so on a timely basis
or will serve and act in the manner described in this Official Statement. The City and the
Trustee are not responsible or liable for the failure of DTC or any Participants to make any
payment or give any notice to a Beneficial Owner with respect to the Bonds or any error or
delay relating thereto.

The foregoing description of the procedures and record-keeping with respect to
beneficial ownership interests in the Bonds, payment of principal, interest and other payments
with respect to the Bonds to Participants or Beneficial Owners, confirmation and transfer of
beneficial ownership interests in such Bonds and other related transactions by and between
DTC, the Participants and the Beneficial Owners is based on information provided by DTC.
Accordingly, the City takes no responsibility for the accuracy thereof.
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FINANCIAL MUNICIPAL
ASSURANCE. ~ INSURANCEPQL

Policy
Effectivg

FINANCIAL SECURITY ASSURAI
hereby UNCONDITIONALLY AND IRREVQ

of the Owner's
thereupon vest in
Business Day if it is

oupon to the Bond or right to receipt of
p fully subrogated to the rights of the Owner,

ifigd by an endorsement hereto, the following terms shall have
"Business Day" means any day other than (a) a

payment is due by reason of call for redemption (other than by mandatory
mption), acceleration or other advancement of maturity unless Financial Security shall
{discretion, to pay such principal due upon such acceleration together with any accrued

sufficient funds to the Trustee or, if there is no Trustee, to the Paying Agent for payment in full of
ipal and interest that is Due for Payment on such Bond. "Nonpayment" shall also include, in
t of a Bond, any payment of principal or interest that is Due for Payment made to an Owner by or on
of the Issuer which has been recovered from such Owner pursuant to the




United States Bankruptcy Code by a trustee in bankruptcy in accordance with ;
of a court having competent jurisdiction. "Notice” means telephonic or tolé

or the Paying Agent to Financial Security which notice shall speci
claim, (b) the Policy Number, (q) the claimed amount and (d) the

not be deemed received until
Security under this Policy
behalf of Financial Securj

pr otherwnse)
¥ subrogation,

any modification or amendment
#t hereto, (a) any premium paid in
) including payment, or provision being

FINANCIAL SECURITY ASSURANCE INC.

By

Authorized Officer

A subsfdiary of Financial Security Assurance Holdings Ltd. (212) 826-0100
350 PArk Avenue, New York, N.Y. 10022-6022
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As bsiﬁoﬂ of Financial Security Assurance Holdings Ltd. (212) 826-0100
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